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During 2009 we
celebrated the 15th

anniversary of the

formation of DreamWorks and our launch into the

field of animation as well as our fifth year as

publicly
traded company We looked back with some

pride since in just decade and half we have

grown into the worlds largest animation studio that

today includes some of the most successful franchises

ever created But mostly we used the occasion to

look forward as our success is now enabling our

company to become more than an animation

studio but truly family entertainment company

Of course our anniversary year was also

challenging one as we had to contend with the

most difficult economic environment in decades

Through it all we held strong and even expanded

our franchises into number of new businesses

including Shrek The Musical on Broadway The

Penguins of Madagascar on Nickelodeon and

Merry Madagascar and Monsters vs Aliens Mutant

Pumpkins From Outer Space as new holiday

specials on NBC Thanks both to the strength of

our core business and the success of our new

initiatives DreamWorks Animation achieved year

over-year earnings growtheven with only one

theatrical release in 2009

In addition to growing the business 2009 became

The Year of 3D not only for our company but for

the entertainment industry as whole This past

March the new format took off in spectacular way

with Monsters vs Aliens Subsequent 3D releases

have continued to attract larger numbers of

enthusiastic audiences think it is safe to say that-

as we anticipated when we became the first studio

to commit 100% to 3D production- is game

changer for DreamWorks Animation and we expect

it to be an important industry growth driver for

years to come

As we took ahead to 2010 believe we have

positioned ourselves for very strong year marked

by number of landmark achievements First and

foremost we will do something that no other studio

has ever accomplished by releasing three computer-

generated animated films in single yearall in

3D How to Train Your Dragon Shrek Forever After

and Megamind

In 2010 we will also deliver on number of strategic

initiatives for which weve been laying considerable

groundwork over number of years We will be

launching Kung Fu Panda World the first of

DreamWorks Animations online virtual worlds for

kids Shrek The Musicals national touring company
will open in Chicago in July after which it will travel

around the country We are expanding our

television specials and series business by

broadcasting two new holiday specials in the

latter half of 2010 Scared Shrek/ess for Halloween

and Kung Fu Panda-themed holiday special

And we are well along in developing an exciting

new DreamWorks Animation television series

based on Kung Fu Panda which would build on

the success of The Penguins of Madagascar on

Nickelodeon

In January 2010 certainly got off to great start for

us as Fortune magazine issued its list of 100 Best

Companies to Work For and ranked DreamWorks

Animation number six.. the only entertainment

company to make the list We are extremely proud

of this accomplishment since it acknowledges the

success of one of our core business strategies We
believe that operating great workplace is not just

the right thing to do but also the smart thing to do
since it helps attract the best people and then

helps inspire them to do their best

want to take this opportunity on behalf of our

Board of Directors and management team to thank

our over 1900 employees who realty are the best

Their excellence shows in every frame of every

single piece of entertainment we produce For

good reason we call them DreamWorkers They

have made the last 15 years such triumph and

thanks to them we can eagerly look ahead to the

next 15 years

But none of this would be possible without you

DreamWorks Animations shareholders You are

partners in everything we do Thank you for your

ongoing support

Sincerely

Jeffrey Katzenberg

CEO DreamWorks Animation
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Unless the context otherwise requires the terms Dream Works Animation the

Company we us and our refer to Dream Works Animation SKG Inc its

consolidated subsidiaries predecessors in interest and the subsidiaries and assets and

liabilities contributed to it by the entity then known as DreamWorks L.L.C Old Dream Works

Studios on October 27 2004 the Separation Date in connection with our separation

from Old Dream Works Studios the Separation



PART

Item Business

Overview

DreamWorks Animation creates family entertainment including animated feature films

television specials and series live entertainment properties online virtual worlds and related

consumer products meant for audiences around the world We have released total of 18 animated

feature films of which Shrek the Third Shrek and Madagascar were the highest-grossing animated

films in the domestic box office in their respective years of release and Shrek remains the highest-

grossing animated film as well as the fifth-highest grossing film of all time in the domestic box

office The table below lists our animated films produced and released since 2007

Worldwide Home
Domestic Worldwide Home Entertainment

Theatrical Domestic Box Office1 Video Units2 Revenue3

Film Release Date as of 12/31109 as of 12/31/09 as of 12/31/09

Monsters vs Aliens4 March 2009 $198.4 million 6.6 million4 $106.5 million5

Madagascar Escape Africa ... November 2008 $180.0 million 12.9 million $176.4 million

Kung Fu Panda June 2008 $215.4 million 17.4 million $233.3 million

Bee Movie November 2007 $126.6 million 10.1 million $137.6 million

Shrek the Third May 2007 $322.7 million 22.8 million $343.8 million

Source boxofficemojo.com Box office receipts represent the amounts collected by domestic

theatrical exhibitors for exhibition of films and do not represent measures of our revenue In the

past our distributors percentage of domestic box office receipts has generally ranged from an

effective rate of 41% to 52% depending on the financial success of the motion picture and the

number of weeks that it plays at the box office For discussion of how we recognize revenues

on our films under our third-party distribution agreements please see Distribution and

Servicing Arrangements herein

Represents worldwide home video units shipped less actual returns and an estimated provision

for future returned units Excludes units sold via digital download

Represents worldwide home entertainment revenue less actual returns and an estimated

provision for future returned units Excludes revenue from units sold via digital download

Released in both 2D and stereoscopic 3D
Monsters vs Aliens was released in the home entertainment market on September 29 2009

Historically our business plan has generally been to release two animated feature filmsper year

During 2009 we released one animated feature film Monsters vs Aliens which was released into the

domestic theatrical market on March 27 2009 In 2009 we announced that beginning in 2010 we

expect to release total of five movies every two years We currently plan to release three animated

films How to Train Your Dragon Shrek Forever After and Megamind in 2010 We are currently

producing five additional feature films of which we expect to release two in 2011 and three in 2012

In addition we have substantial number of projects in creative and story development that are

expected to fill the release schedule in 2013 and beyond In 2007 we announced that all of our films

beginning with the release of Monsters vs Aliens in 2009 will be released in stereoscopic 3D



Our feature films are currently the source of substantial portion of our revenue We derive

revenue from our distributors worldwide exploitation of our feature films in theaters and in ancillary

markets such as home entertainment and pay and free broadcast television In addition we earn

revenue from the licensing and merchandising of our films and characters in markets around the

world Effective January 31 2006 our results reflect our distribution servicing and other

arrangements with Paramount Pictures Corporation and its affiliates and related entities including

Old DreamWorks Studios collectively Paramount Beginning with the fourth quarter of 2004

and continuing through January 31 2006 our results reflect the effects of our distribution servicing

and other arrangements with Old DreamWorks Studios as also discussed For discussion of our

distribution arrangements prior to January 31 2006 see our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

year ended December 31 2007 For discussion of the Companys business segment and of

geographic information about the Companys revenues please see the Companys consolidated

financial statements and notes thereto included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Company History

Prior to the Separation on October 27 2004 we were business division of Old DreamWorks

Studios the diversified entertainment company formed in October 1994 by Steven Spielberg Jeffrey

Katzenberg and David Geffen As division of Old DreamWorks Studios we conducted our

business primarily through Old DreamWorks Studios animation division On October 28 2004 our

Class common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange in connection with our initial

public offering

In connection with the Separation we entered into separation agreement the Separation

Agreement and number of other agreements with Old DreamWorks Studios to accomplish the

Separation and establish the terms of our various relationships with Old DreamWorks Studios We

completed the Separation in connection with our initial public offering in October 2004 by the direct

transfer to us of certain of the assets and liabilities that comprise our business Old DreamWorks

Studios also transferred certain of its subsidiaries to us

We conduct our business primarily in two studiosin Glendale California where we are

headquartered and in Redwood City California Our Glendale animation campus where the

majority of our animators and production staff are based was custom built in 1997

We generally retain the exclusive copyright and other intellectual property rights to all of our

projects and characters other than co-ownership of the copyright and other intellectual property

rights including characters in and to films co-produced with Aardman Animations Ltd

Aardman ii Wallace Gromit The Curse of the Were-Rabbit film owned by Aardman for

which we generally have worldwide distribution rights in perpetuity excluding certain United

Kingdom television rights and certain ancillary markets and iii the animated television series The

Penguins of Madagascar for which the copyright is owned by Nickelodeon



Films in Production and Development

We are currently producing eight animated feature films for release between 2010 and 2012 In

addition we have substantial number of projects in development that are expected to fill our release

schedule in 2013 and beyond The table below lists all of our films that are expected to be released

through the end of 2012

Title Expected Release Date

How to Train Your Dragon March 26 2010

Shrek Forever After May 21 2010

Megamind November 2010

Kung Fu Panda Kaboom of Doom June 2011

Puss in Boots November 2011

The Croods First Quarter 2012

Madagascar Second Quarter 2012

The Guardians working title Fourth Quarter 2012

Release dates are tentative Due to the uncertainties involved in the development and production

of animated feature films the date of completion can be significantly delayed

Business Expansion

Over the last few years the Company has commenced number of initiatives aimed at further

capitalizing on its franchise film properties such as Shrek Madagascar and Kung Fu Panda These

business initiatives seek to broaden and diversify the Companys revenue streams by exploiting the

film properties in other areas of family entertainment including the following

Television Specials and Series

In December 2007 our half-hour television Christmas special Shrek the Halls premiered on

network television The special was one of the highest-rated television shows in its time slot during

2007 In 2009 two additional half-hour television specials Monsters vs Aliens Mutant Pumpkins

from Outer Space and Merry Madagascar debuted on network television The Company has several

additional television specials in development for initial broadcast in 2010 and beyond In connection

with these specials the Company has or intends to enter into long-term network television

distribution agreements while retaining all other distribution rights such as DVD other home

entertainment and consumer product distribution rights

The animated television series The Penguins of Madagascar debuted on the Nickelodeon

network in March 2009 Under the Companys agreement with Paramount an affiliate of

Nickelodeon which is discussed in greater length in Distribution and Servicing Arrangements

How We Distribute Promote and Market Our FilmsNickelodeon Television Development the

Company is generally entitled to receive one-half of the revenues as well as certain service fees

associated with home entertainment and consumer products sales related to the television series



Live Productions

In December 2008 the Companys Shrek The Musical debuted on Broadway The play is based

on the Companys 2001 theatrical release Shrek Although the Broadway production closed in

January 2010 the Company currently expects that national touring production of the play will

begin public performances in Chicago in the second half of 2010 The Company is also developing

live shows based on its theatrical film properties Madagascar How to Train Your Dragon and Kung

Fu Panda

Online Virtual Worlds

The Company currently expects that its online virtual world based on Kung Fu Panda will

become available to the public in the first half of 2010 The virtual world Kung Fu Panda World

will be aimed at children ages seven through 12 The Company currently expects that it will realize

revenue from the virtual world through user subscription fees and advertising The Company has also

begun development of an online virtual world based on How to Train Your Dragon

Distribution and Servicing Arrangements

On January 31 2006 Viacom Inc and certain of its affiliates collectively Viacom

including Paramount acquired Old DreamWorks Studios In connection with this transaction we

terminated our prior distribution agreement with Old DreamWorks Studios the Old DreamWorks

Studios Distribution Agreement Effective January 31 2006 the worldwide theatrical and

television distribution and home video fulfillment services for our films released after January 31

2006 have been provided by Paramount detailed discussion of our distribution and fulfillment

services agreements with Paramount is provided immediately below For the period beginning

October 2004 to January 31 2006 our films were distributed in the domestic theatrical and

worldwide television market directly by Old DreamWorks Studios and in international theatrical and

worldwide home entertainment markets by Universal Studios Inc Universal Studios as an

approved subdistributor and fulfillment services provider of Old DreamWorks Studios in each case

pursuant to the terms of the Old DreamWorks Studios Distribution Agreement For detailed

discussion of these prior distribution and servicing arrangements please see our Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007

How We Distribute Promote and Market our Films

Overview

On January 31 2006 we entered into distribution agreement with Paramount and its affiliates

the Paramount Distribution Agreement and our wholly owned subsidiary DreamWorks

Animation Home Entertainment L.L.C DreamWorks Animation Home Entertainment

entered into fulfillment services agreement the Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement

and with the Paramount Distribution Agreement the Paramount Agreements with an affiliate of

Paramount

Under the Paramount Distribution Agreement subject to certain exceptions Paramount

advertises publicizes promotes distributes and exploits our animated feature films in each territory



and in each media designated by us Under the Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement we have

engaged Paramount to render worldwide home video fulfillment services and video-on-demand

services in each territory designated by us for all films previously released for home entertainment

exhibition and video-on-demand exhibition by us and for every animated film licensed to Paramount

pursuant to the Paramount Distribution Agreement with respect to which we own or control the

requisite rights

Paramount Distribution Agreement

The following is summary of the Paramount Distribution Agreement which is filed as an

exhibit to this Form 10-K This summary is qualified in all respects by such reference Investors in

our common stock are encouraged to read the Paramount Distribution Agreement

Term of Agreement The Paramount Distribution Agreement grants Paramount the worldwide

right to distribute all of our animated films including previously released films completed and

available for release through the later of our delivery to Paramount of 13 new animated feature

films and ii December 31 2012 unless in either case the agreement is terminated earlier in

accordance with its terms To date we have delivered total of seven animated feature films under

the agreement If we or Paramount terminate the Paramount Distribution Agreement our existing and

future films will generally be subject to the terms of any sub-distribution servicing and licensing

agreements entered into by Paramount that we have pre-approved

The distribution rights granted to Paramount generally include domestic and international

theatrical exhibition ii domestic and international television licensing including pay-per-view pay

television network basic cable and syndication iii non-theatrical exhibition such as on airlines in

schools and in armed forces institutions and iv Internet radio for promotional purposes only and

new media rights to the extent that we or any of our affiliates own or control the rights to the

foregoing at the time of delivery We retain all other rights to exploit our films including domestic

and international home entertainment exhibition and video-on-demand exhibition rights and we have

engaged Paramount under the Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement to render services in

connection with our exploitation of these rights on worldwide basis and the right to make prequels

and sequels commercial tie-in and promotional rights with respect to each film as well as

merchandising theme park interactive literary publishing music publishing and soundtrack rights

Once Paramount has acquired the license to distribute one of our animated feature films Paramount

generally will have the right to exploit the film in the manner described above for 16 years from such

films initial general theatrical release

Distribution Services Paramount is responsible for the worldwide distribution in the media

mentioned above of all of our animated feature films but may engage one or more sub-distributors

and service providers in those territories and media in which Paramount subdistributes all or

substantially all of its motion pictures subject to our prior written approval Our grant of distribution

rights to Paramount is expressly subject to certain existing subdistribution and license agreements

previously entered into by Old DreamWorks Studios Pursuant to the Paramount Distribution

Agreement we are required to continue to license directly to Old DreamWorks Studios those

distribution rights
in and to our existing and future animated films to the extent necessary for Old

DreamWorks Studios to comply with such existing subdistribution and license agreements Upon



expiration of Old DreamWorks Studios existing agreements all distribution rights that are subject to

such agreements shall be automatically granted to Paramount for the remainder of the term of the

Paramount Distribution Agreement

Distribution Approvals and Control Paramount is required to consult with and submit to us

detailed plan and budget regarding the theatrical marketing release and distribution of each of our

films We have certain approval rights over these plans and are entitled to determine the initial

domestic theatrical release dates for all of our films and to approve the initial theatrical release dates

in the majority of the international territories subject to certain limitations in the summer and holiday

release periods Generally Paramount is not permitted to theatrically release any film owned or

controlled by Paramount with an MPAA rating of PG or or less within the period beginning

one week prior to and ending one week following the initial domestic and international territories

theatrical release dates of one of our films Paramount has further agreed that all matters regarding

the designation and movement of theatrical release dates for our films and the related release and

marketing obligations under the Paramount Distribution Agreement shall be at all times subject to

the terms and conditions of our worldwide promotional agreement with McDonalds

Expenses and Fees The Paramount Distribution Agreement provides that we will be solely

responsible for all of the costs of developing and producing our animated feature films including

contingent compensation and residual costs Paramount will be responsible for all of the

out-of-pocket costs charges and expenses incurred in the distribution advertising marketing and

publicizing of each film collectively the Distribution Expenses

The Paramount Distribution Agreement provides that we and Paramount will mutually agree on

the amount of Distribution Expenses to be incurred with respect to the initial theatrical release of

each film in the domestic territory and in the majority of the international territories including all

print and advertising costs and media purchases e.g expenses paid for print advertising However

in the event of disagreement Paramounts decisions based on its good-faith business judgment

will prevail Unless we and Paramount otherwise agree the aggregate amount of Distribution

Expenses to be incurred with respect to any event film that is rated PG 13 or less-restrictive

rating and is released in the domestic territory on at least 2000 screens will be equal to or greater

than 90% of the average amount of Distribution Expenses incurred to release our three most recent

event films as measured on rolling basis subject to certain adjustments However if we determine

in good faith that films gross receipts will be materially enhanced by the expenditure of additional

Distribution Expenses we may cause Paramount to increase such expenditures provided that we will

be solely responsible for advancing to or reimbursing Paramount for those additional expenditures

within five business days of receiving an invoice from Paramount

Under the Paramount Distribution Agreement Paramount is entitled to retain fee of 8.0%

of revenue without deduction for distribution and marketing costs and third-party distribution fees

and sales agent fees and ii recoup all of its distribution and marketing costs with respect to our

films on title-by-title basis prior to our recognizing any revenue For each film licensed to

Paramount revenues fees and expenses for such film under the Paramount Distribution Agreement

are combined with the revenues fees and expenses for such film under the Paramount Fulfillment

Services Agreement and we are provided with single monthly accounting statement and if



applicable payment for each film For further discussion see Expenses and Fees under the

Paramount Distribution Agreement and Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement below

Creative Control We retain the exclusive right to make all creative decisions and initiate any

action with respect to the development production and acquisition of each of our films including the

right to abandon the development or production of film and the right to exercise final cut

Reimbursement Amounts Paramount has agreed to pay us an annual cost reimbursement

amount during the period that we are delivering new films to Paramount pursuant to the Paramount

Distribution Agreement During the year ended December 31 2009 the amount of this cost

reimbursement paid by Paramount was approximately $8.3 million

Nickelodeon Television Development As part of the Paramount Distribution Agreement we

agreed to license subject to certain conditions and third party rights and restrictions to Paramount

on behalf of Nickelodeon the exclusive rights to develop television properties based on our films

and the characters and elements contained in those films The license to Paramount is expressly

conditioned on Nickelodeon continuing to develop and commence production on television programs

based on our film properties We also retain the right to co-produce any television programs and

maintain all customary creative approvals over any production using our film properties including

the selection of the film elements to be used as the basis for any television productions The animated

television series The Penguins of Madagascar which is based on our Madagascar films debuted on

the Nickelodeon network in March 2009

Additional Services Under the terms of the Paramount Distribution Agreement Paramount

has agreed to provide us at minimal cost certain production-related services including but not limited

to film music licensing archiving of film materials credits participations travel and residual

accounting

Termination Upon the occurrence of certain events of default which include the failure of

either party to make payment and the continuance thereof for five business days material uncured

breach of the agreement and certain bankruptcy-related events the non-breaching party may

terminate the agreement If we fail to deliver to Paramount three qualifying theatrical films per five-

year period if applicable of the Paramount Distribution Agreement e.g three films within the first

five years six films within the first 10 years then Paramount has the right to terminate the

agreement In addition if Paramount is in breach or default under any sub-distribution or third-party

service agreements that have been pre-approved by us and such breach or default has or will have

material adverse effect on Paramounts ability to exploit the distribution rights in accordance with the

terms of the Paramount Distribution Agreement then we may terminate the agreement If we

terminate the agreement we generally can require Paramount to stop distributing our films in the

various territories and markets in which Paramount directly distributes our films or we can terminate

the remaining term of the Paramount Distribution Agreement but require Paramount to continue

distributing our films that are currently being distributed or are ready for release pursuant to the

Paramount Distribution Agreement subject in each case to the terms of any output agreements

such as any agreements that we may have with any television networks or other agreements to

which the films are then subject provided that Paramount continues to pay us all amounts required to

be paid to us and to perform its other obligations pursuant to the Paramount Distribution Agreement



Unless otherwise agreed termination of the Paramount Distribution Agreement will not affect the

rights that any sub-distributor or service provider has with respect to our films pursuant to

sub-distribution servicing and licensing agreements that we have approved Moreover we can elect

to terminate the Paramount Distribution Agreement and in our sole discretion the Paramount

Fulfillment Services Agreement after January 2011 if we experience change in control as

defined therein and pay one-time termination fee The amount of the termination fee is $150

million if we terminate the Paramount Distribution Agreement on January 2011 and the amount of

the termination fee reduces ratably to zero during the period from January 2011 to December 31

2012 Upon termination by either party of the Paramount Distribution Agreement or the Paramount

Fulfillment Services Agreement we have the corresponding right to terminate the other agreement at

our sole election

Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement

The following is summary of the Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement which is filed as

an exhibit to this Form 10-K This summary is qualified in all respects by such reference Investors in

our common stock are encouraged to read the Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement

Term ofAgreement and Exciusivily Under the Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement we

have engaged Paramount to render worldwide home video fulfillment services and video-on-demand

services for all films previously released for home entertainment exhibition and video-on-demand

exhibition by us and for every animated film licensed to Paramount pursuant to the Paramount

Distribution Agreement with respect to which we own or control the requisite rights at the time of

delivery Once Paramount has been engaged to render fulfillment services for one of our animated

feature films Paramount generally has the right to render such services in the manner described

herein for 16 years from such films initial general theatrical release

Fulfillment Services Paramount is responsible for preparing marketing and home

entertainment distribution plans with respect to our home entertainment releases as well as arranging

necessary third-party services preparing artwork making media purchases for product marketing

maintaining secure physical inventory sites and arranging shipping of the home entertainment units

Approvals and Controls Paramount is required to render fulfillment services on

film-by-film territory-by-territory basis as requested and directed by us and Paramount cannot

generally refuse to provide fulfillment services with respect to our home entertainment releases in

any territory We have certain approval rights over the marketing and home entertainment

distribution plans mentioned above and are entitled to determine the initial home entertainment

release dates for all of our films in the domestic territory and to approve home entertainment release

dates in the majority of the international territories

Expenses and Fees The Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement requires Paramount to

pay all expenses relating to home entertainment distribution including marketing manufacturing

development and shipping costs and all services fees paid to subcontractors excluding contingent

compensation and residual costs collectively Home Video Fulfillment Expenses The

Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement provides that we and Paramount will mutually agree on

the amount of Home Video Fulfillment Expenses to be incurred However in the event of



disagreement Paramounts decision based on its good-faith business judgment will prevail Unless

we and Paramount otherwise agree the aggregate amount of Home Video Fulfillment Expenses to be

incurred with respect to any event film that is rated PG 13 or less-restrictive rating and is

released in the domestic territory on at least 2000 screens will be equal to or greater than 90% of the

average amount of Home Video Fulfillment Expenses incurred to release our three most recent event

films as measured on rolling basis subject to certain adjustments However if we determine in

good faith that films gross receipts will be materially enhanced by the expenditure of additional

Home Video Fulfillment Expenses we may cause Paramount to increase such expenditures provided

that we will be solely responsible for advancing to or reimbursing Paramount for those additional

expenditures within five business days of receiving an invoice from Paramount

In return for the provision of fulfillment services to us Paramount is entitled to retain

service fee of 8% of home entertainment revenues without deduction for any manufacturing

distribution and marketing costs and third party service fees and ii recoup all of its Home Video

Fulfillment Expenses with respect to our films on title-by-title basis For each film with respect to

which Paramount is rendering fulfillment services revenues fees and expenses for such film under

the Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement are combined with the revenues fees and expenses

for such film under the Paramount Distribution Agreement and we are provided with single

monthly accounting statement and if applicable payment for each film For further discussion see

Expenses and Fees under the Paramount Distribution Agreement and Paramount Fulfillment

Services Agreement below

Termination The termination and remedy provisions under the Paramount Fulfillment

Services Agreement are similar to those under the Paramount Distribution Agreement

Expenses and Fees under the Paramount Distribution Agreement and Paramount Fulfillment

Services Agreement

Each of our films is accounted for under the Paramount Distribution Agreement and the

Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement on combined basis for each film In such regard all

revenues expenses and fees under the Paramount Agreements for given film are fully cross-

collateralized If theatrical feature film does not generate revenue in all media net of the 8.0%

distribution and servicing fee sufficient for Paramount to recoup its expenses under the Paramount

Agreements Paramount will not be entitled to recoup those costs from proceeds of our other

theatrical feature films and we will not be required to repay Paramount for such amounts

Licensing

We have entered into variety of strategic licensing arrangements with number of consumer

products companies and other retailers Pursuant to our typical arrangements we grant single

picture license to use our characters or film elements in connection with specified merchandise item

or category in exchange for percentage of net sales of the products and in certain instances

minimum guaranteed payments We may also enter into other arrangements such as multi-picture

agreements or multi-category license agreements pursuant to which the licensee receives exclusive

merchandising or promotional rights
in exchange for royalty payments or guaranteed payments



In 2008 the Company announced that it had entered into master license agreement with

Tatweer Dubai LLC Tatweer Under this agreement the Company would license certain of its

characters for use in connection with planned DreamWorks Animation theme park in Dubai The

agreement also granted Tatweer the right to use the Companys characters in connection with themed

hotels restaurants and other tourism projects The Company and Tatweer mutually agreed to

terminate this agreement in 2009 although the Company has granted Tatweer right of first

negotiation with respect to theme parks in certain parts of the Middle East for limited period of

time

Strategic Alliances and Promotions

The success of our projects greatly depends not only on their quality but also on the degree of

consumer awareness that we are able to generate for their theatrical and home entertainment releases

In order to increase consumer awareness we have developed key strategic alliances as well as

numerous promotional partnerships worldwide In general these arrangements provide that we

license our characters and storylines for use in conjunction with our promotional partners products

or services In exchange we generally receive promotional fees in addition to substantial marketing

benefits from cross-promotional opportunities such as inclusion of our characters and movie images

in television commercials on-line print media and on promotional packaging

We currently have strategic alliances with McDonalds Hewlett-Packard and Intel We recently

entered into strategic alliance with Samsung related to 3D DVD versions of Monsters vs Aliens

We believe these relationships are mutually valuable We benefit because of the substantial consumer

awareness generated for our films and our partners benefit because these arrangements provide them

the opportunity to build their brand awareness and associate with popular culture in unique ways
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How We Develop and Produce our Films

The Animated Filmmaking Process

The filmmaking process starts with an idea Inspiration for film comes from many sourcesfrom our

in-house staff from freelance writers or from existing literary works Successful ideas are generally written up

as treatment or story description and then proceed to screenplay followed by the storyboarding process

and then finally into the production process Excluding the script and early development phase the production

process from storyboarding to filming out the final image for full-length
feature film can take

approximately three to four years

We employ small collaborative teams that are responsible for preparing storylines and ideas for the initial

stages of development These teams through system of creative development controls are responsible for

ensuring that ideas follow the best creative path within desired budget and schedule parameters The

complexity of each project the background environments the characters and all of the elements in project

create very intricate and time-consuming process that differs for each project The table below depicts in

very general manner timeline for full-length feature film and describes the four general and overlapping

phases that constitute the process and their components

Storyboarding

Visual Development

Modeling

Music Score

Variable Year Year

The development phase generally consists of story and visual development The duration of the

development phase can vary project by projectfrom matter of months to number of years In the

pre-production phase the script and story are further developed and refined prior to the majority of the film

crew commencing work on the project The production phase which follows can last up to two years

depending on the length of the project television specials
will generally be shorter and involves the largest

number of staff The Companys introduction of stereoscopic 3D for its filmsbeginning in 2009 provides the

filmmakers with additional variables to review and decide upon during this production phase Finally in the

post-production phase the core visuals and dialogue are in place and we add important elements such as

sound effects and the music/score

Treatment

Screenplay

Chretr Riaaina

Voice Recordina

Layout

Animation

Lighting

Sound Effects

Final Delivery
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Our Technology

Our technology plays an important role in the production of our projects Our focus on user

interface and tool development enables our artists to use existing and emerging technologies

allowing us to leverage our artistic talent In addition we have strategic relationships with leading

technology companies that allow us to benefit from third-party advancements and technology at the

early stages of their introduction

Competition

Our films and other projects compete on broad level with all forms of entertainment and even

other consumer leisure activities Our primary competition for film audiences comes from both

animated and live-action films that are targeted at similaraudiences and released into the theatrical

market at the same time as our films At this level in addition to competing for box-office receipts

we compete with other film studios over optimal release dates and the number of motion picture

screens on which our movies are exhibited In addition with respect to the home entertainment and

television markets we compete with other films as well as other forms of entertainment We also

face intense competition from other animation studios for the services of talented writers directors

producers animators and other employees

Competition for FilmAudiences Our primary competition comes from both animated and

live-action films that are targeted at similar audiences and released into the theatrical market at the

same time as our films Our feature films compete with both live-action and animated films for

motion picture screens particularly during national and school holidays when demand is at its peak

Due to the competitive environment the opening weekend for film is extremely important in

establishing momentum for its domestic box-office performance Because we currently expect to

release only two or three filmsper year our objective is to produce so-called event films attracting

the largest and broadest audiences possible As result the scheduling of optimal release dates is

critical to our success One of the most important factors we consider when determining the release

date for any particular film is the expected release date of other films especially 3D films targeting

similar audiences In this regard we pay particular attention to the expected release dates of other

films produced by other animation studios although we also pay attention to the expected release

dates of live-action and other event films that are vying for similarbroad audience appeal

Disney/Pixar Sony Entertainment and Fox Entertainments Blue Sky Studios are currently the

animation studios that we believe target similar audiences and have comparable animated

filmmaking capabilities In addition other companies and production studios continue to release

animated films which can affect the market in which our films compete

Competition in Home Entertainment In the home entertainment market our films and

television entertainment compete with not only other theatrical titles or direct-to-video titles and

television series titles but also other forms of home entertainment such as online or console games

As competition in the home entertainment market increases consumers are given greater number of

choices for home entertainment products In addition once our films are released in the home

entertainment market they may also compete with other films that are in their initial theatrical release

or in their subsequent theatrical re-release cycles Finally over the past several years there has been

an increase in competition for shelf space given by retailers for any specific title
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Competition for Talent Currently we compete with other animated film and visual effect

studios for artists animators directors and producers In addition we compete for the services of

computer programmers and other technical production staff with other animation studios and

production companies and increasingly with video game producers In order to recruit and retain

talented creative and technical personnel we have established relationships with the top animation

schools and industry trade groups We have also established in-house digital training and artistic

development training programs

Potential Competition Barriers to entry into the animation field have decreased as technology

has advanced While we have developed proprietary software to create animated films other film

studios may not be required to do so as technological advances have made it possible to purchase

third-party
software capable of producing high-quality images Although we have developed

proprietary technology experience and know-how in the animation field especially with respect to

stereoscopic 3D that we believe provide us with significant advantages over new entrants in the

animated film market there are no substantial technological barriers to entry that prevent other film

studios from entering the field Furthermore advances in technology may substantially decrease the

time that it takes to produce animated feature film which could result in significant number of

new animated films or products The entrance of additional animation companies into the animated

feature film market could adversely impact us by eroding our market share increasing the

competition for animated film audiences and increasing the competition for and cost of hiring and

retaining talented employees particularly animators and technical staff

Employees

As of December 31 2009 we employed approximately 1940 people many of whom were

covered by employment agreements which generally include non-disclosure agreements Of that

total approximately two-thirds were directly employed in the production of our films as animators

modelers story artists visual development artists layout artists editors technical directors lighters

and visual effects artists and production staff approximately 260 were primarily engaged in

supporting and developing our animation technology and approximately 385 worked on general

corporate and administrative matters including our licensing and merchandising operations We also

hire additional employees on picture-by-picture basis The salaries of these additional employees

as well as portions of the salaries of certain full-time employees who provide direct production

services are typically allocated to the capitalized costs of the related feature film In addition

approximately 770 of our employees and some of the employees or independent contractors that we

hire on project-by-project basis were represented under three industry-wide collective bargaining

agreements to which we are party namely agreements with Locals 700 and 839 of the International

Alliance of Theatrical Stage Employees IATSE which generally cover certain members of our

production staff and an agreement with the Screen Actors Guild SAG which generally covers

artists such as actors and singers We believe that our employee and labor relations are good

Recent Developments

Time Sharing Agreement with NPM Management LLC

On October 27 2008 the Company entered into Time Sharing Agreement for use of an

aircraft that is owned by Intellectual Ventures Management LLC IVM company controlled by
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one of the Companys directors Nathan Myhrvold Under this agreement if Mr Myhrvold uses the

aircraft to attend Board meetings or other Company functions the Company pays an hourly rate

equal to two times the fuel cost plus certain enumerated expenses such as landing fees crew travel

costs and catering On February 18 2010 the Company amended this agreement to substitute NPM

Management LLC another entity controlled by Mr Myhrvold for IVM Other than the substitution

of the contracting entity the agreement remains unchanged

The amended Time Sharing Agreement is attached as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form

0-K and is incorporated herein by reference

Adoption of Executive Bonus Performance Criteria

On February 18 2010 the Companys Compensation Committee approved the performance

criteria for the cash bonuses for Lewis Coleman Ann Daly William Damaschke and Anne Globe for

the year ending December 31 2010 For 2010 these named executive officers will be eligible to

receive bonus under the Companys 2008 Annual Incentive Plan the 2008 Plan based on the

Companys 2010 return on equity The
target

bonus amounts for Mr Coleman Ms Daly Mr

Damaschke and Ms Globe are $1000000 $750000 $400000 and $350000 respectively and the

maximum bonus amounts are $2000000 $1500000 $800000 and $650000 respectively Actual

bonuses payable for 2010 if any will vary depending on the extent to which performance meets

exceeds or falls short of the established performance goals for the year In addition the

Compensation Committee retains negative discretion to decrease the bonuses that would be payable

to these named executive officers regardless of the Companys performance in 2010

Appointment of Heather OConnor as Chief Accounting Officer

On February 18 2010 the Board of Directors of DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc the

Company elected Heather OConnor as the Companys Chief Accounting Officer effective

February 27 2010

Ms OConnor age 39 has served as our Head of SEC Reporting and Accounting Technical

Research since January 2006 Prior to the Company Ms OConnor filled variety of roles with

increasing levels of responsibility within the Accounting and Financial Planning and Analysis areas

at the Companys predecessor DreamWorks L.L.C Old DreamWorks As the Assistant

Controller of Old DreamWorks Ms OConnor was heavily involved in the sale of that company to

Paramount and the Separation Prior to joining Old DreamWorks Ms OConnor worked as an audit

senior at Arthur Andersen LLP In addition Ms OConnor currently serves as the Treasurer for the

non-profit theater company Needtheater Ms OConnor received Bachelor of Science in

Accountancy from the University of Illinois Urbana-Champaign and is certified public accountant

inactive in California

Ms OConnor has entered into an employment agreement with the Company effective

February 27 2010 the Employment Agreement

Term and Salary The Employment Agreement provides for term extending until February 27

2012 although the Company may at its option extend the term until February 27 2014 Ms
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OConnor annual base salary will be $250000 increasing to $275000 if the Company elects to

extend the term until February 27 2014

Annual Incentive Awards Subject in all instances to the discretion of the Compensation

Committee Ms OConnor will be eligible to receive an annual cash incentive award with target

value of $100000 The actual incentive award received will depend on the Companys performance

Long-Term Equity Incentive Awards Ms OConnor will be eligible subject to annual approval

by the Compensation Committee to receive annual equity incentive awards of restricted stock and

stock options or such other form of equity-based compensation as the Compensation Committee

may determine with grant-date value targeted at $180000

In addition to the compensation described above Ms OConnor is eligible for certain other

benefits such as reimbursement of business expenses

Termination Events The Employment Agreement provides that the Company may terminate

Ms OConnors employment during the employment period with or without cause as defined in the

Employment Agreement and Ms OConnor may terminate her employment for good reason as

defined in the Employment Agreement

If the Company terminates Ms OConnors employment other than for cause incapacity or

death or Ms OConnor terminates her employment for good reason the Company will generally

continue her base salary and benefits until expiration of the term of the Employment Agreement Ms

OConnor will also receive an annual cash amount equal to the average annual bonuses that have

been paid to her during the term of the Employment Agreement Moreover all equity-based

compensation held by Ms OConnor will generally accelerate vesting with respect to grants having

performance-based vesting criteria on the basis that any mid-range or target goals have been

achieved and remain exercisable for the remainder of the term of the grant In addition if Ms

OConnors employment is involuntarily terminated or she terminates her employment for good

reason within 12 months following change of control as defined in the Employment Agreement

the Employment Agreement provides that the annual cash amounts described above will continue for

the greater of the remaining term of the Employment Agreement or ii two years

In the event that Ms OConnor dies or becomes disabled during the term the Employment

Agreement provides for the receipt of continued salary in the case of disability at rate equal to

50% of Ms OConnors base salary and other benefits for specified term The Employment

Agreement also provides that Ms OConnor will be entitled to receive or exercise percentage of

each equity award determined based on the length of time she was employed prior to death or

disability in the case of awards having performance-based vesting criteria subject to attainment of

the applicable performance goals and Ms OConnor will receive credit for the shorter of an

additional year of service or 50% of the remaining term of the Employment Agreement The

exercisable portion of any equity award will remain exercisable for the remaining term of the grant

If Ms OConnors employment is terminated by the Company for cause she will not be entitled

to any equity-based compensation that has not already vested although she will be entitled to

payment for any unpaid base salary and any additional non-contingent cash compensation earned

prior to termination
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Change of control In the event of change of control all unvested equity-based compensation

held by Ms OConnor will remain unvested and continue to vest in accordance with its terms

However unless outstanding awards are assumed or substituted for with new awards covering stock

of successor corporation in the event of change of control all such equity-based compensation

will accelerate vesting with respect to grants having performance-based vesting criteria on the basis

that any mid-range or target goals have been achieved immediately prior to the change of control In

the event that during the 12-month period following change of control Ms OConnors

employment is terminated by the Company other than for cause or by her for good reason all equity-

based compensation held by Ms OConnor will accelerate vesting with respect to grants having

performance-based vesting criteria on the basis that any mid-range or target goals have been

achieved and remain exercisable for the remainder of the term of the grant

Miscellaneous The Company has agreed to indemnify Ms OConnor to the fullest extent

permitted by law against any claims or losses arising in connection with her service to the Company

or any affiliate In addition the Company will indemnify Ms OConnor on fully grossed-up basis

for any tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code on excess parachute payments as defined in

Section 280G of the Code in connection with certain changes in control provided however that if

the excess parachute payments are no more than 10% greater than the amount that could be paid

without causing tax liability under Section 4999 then the payments to Ms OConnor will be reduced

such that no tax liability is incurred If any two of the Companys Chief Executive Officer President

and Chief Operating Officer are no longer entitled to similarindemnification for such tax liability

under Section 4999 then Ms OConnor shall no longer be entitled to such indemnification If any

payment due to Ms OConnor is subject to six-month delay pursuant to Section 409A of the Code

the Company will pay interest on such delayed payments Ms OConnor has agreed to non-

solicitation and confidentiality provisions in the Employment Agreement

The foregoing description of the Employment Agreement is qualified in its entirety by reference

to the Employment Agreement which is attached as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K

and is incorporated herein by reference

Prior to the execution of the Employment Agreement the Company and Ms OConnor were

parties to previous employment agreement the Prior Agreement The Prior Agreement is being

terminated in connection with the execution of the Employment Agreement

Other than pursuant to the Employment Agreement and the Prior Agreement there are no

transactions between the Company and Ms OConnor that are reportable under Item 404a of

Regulation S-K No family relationship as that term is defined in Item 40 1d of Regulation S-K

exists among Ms OConnor and any director nominee for election as director or executive officer

of the Company Other than the Employment Agreement there were no new plans contracts or

arrangements or any amendments to any plans contracts or arrangements entered into with Ms

OConnor in connection with her appointment as Chief Accounting Officer nor were there any

grants or awards made to Ms OConnor in connection therewith
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Where You Can Find More Information

We are required to file annual quarterly and current reports proxy statements and other

information with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC These filings are not deemed to

be incorporated by reference into this report You may read and copy any documents filed by us at

the Public Reference Room of the SEC 100 Street NE Washington D.C 20549 You may obtain

information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at l-800-SEC-0330

Our filings with the SEC are also available to the public through the SECs web site at

http//www sec.gov

Our common stock is currently listed on the Nasdaq under the symbol DWA We maintain an

Internet site at http//www.DreamworksAnimation.com We make available free of charge on or

through our website our annual quarterly and current reports as well as any amendments to these

reports as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing these reports with or furnishing

them to the SEC We have adopted code of ethics applicable to our principal executive financial

and accounting officers We make available free of charge on or through our website investor

relations page our code of ethics Our website and the information posted on it or connected to it

shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into this or any other report we file with or

furnish to the SEC
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Item 1A Risk Factors

This report and other documents we file with the SEC contain forward-looking statements that

are based on current expectations estimates forecasts and projections about us ourfuture

performance our business or others acting on our behalf our beliefs and our managements

assumptions These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks

uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict You should carefully consider the risks

and uncertainties facing our business The risks described below are not the only ones facing us Our

business is also subject to the risks that affect many other companies such as general economic

conditions and geopolitical events Further additional risks not currently known to us or that we

currently believe are immaterial could have material adverse effect on our business financial

condition or operating results

Our success is primarily dependent on audience acceptance of our films which is extremely

difficult to predict and therefore inherently risky

We cannot predict the economic success of any of our motion pictures because the revenue

derived from the distribution of motion picture which does not necessarily bear any correlation to

the production or distribution costs incurred depends primarily upon its acceptance by the public

which cannot be accurately predicted The economic success of motion picture also depends upon

the publics acceptance of competing films the availability of alternative forms of entertainment and

leisure-time activities general economic conditions and other tangible and intangible factors all of

which can change and cannot be predicted with certainty Furthermore part of the appeal of CG

animated films such as ours may be due to their relatively recent introduction to the market We

cannot assure you that the introduction of new animated flimmaking techniques an increase in the

number of CG animated films or the resurgence in popularity of older animated filmmaking

techniques will not adversely affect the popularity of CG animated films

In general the economic success of motion picture is dependent on its domestic theatrical

performance which is key factor in predicting revenue from other distribution channels and is

largely determined by our ability to produce content and develop stories and characters that appeal to

broad audience and by the effective marketing of the motion picture If we are unable to accurately

judge audience acceptance of our film content or to have the film effectively marketed the

commercial success of the film will be in doubt which could result in costs not being recouped or

anticipated profits not being realized Moreover we cannot assure you that any particular feature film

will generate enough revenue to offset its distribution fulfillment services and marketing costs in

which case we would not receive any net revenues for such film from Paramount In the past some

of our films have not recovered their production costs after recoupment of marketing fulfillment

services and distribution costs in an acceptable timeframe or at all

Our business is currently substantially dependent upon the success of limited number of film

releases each year and the unexpected delay or commercial failure of any one of them could

have material adverse effect on our financial results

Historically our business plan has been to release two animated feature films per year In 2009

we announced that beginning in 2010 we expect to release five animated feature films every two

years The unexpected delay in release or commercial failure of just one of these films could have
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significant adverse impact on our results of operations in both the year of release and in the future

Historically feature films that are successful in the domestic theatrical market are generally also

successful in the international theatrical home entertainment and television markets although each

film is different and there is no way to guarantee such results If our films fail to achieve domestic

box office success their international box office and home entertainment success and our business

results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected Further we can make no

assurances that the historical correlation between domestic box office results and international box

office and home entertainment results will continue in the future In addition we can make no

assurances that home entertainment wholesale prices can be maintained at current levels due to

marketplace or other factors In 2005 the home entertainment performance of our films was

adversely affected by changes in the home entertainment market In addition since that time there

has been general decline in both the number of DVD units sold and the profitability
of such DVD

units

We cannot predict the effect that rapid technological change emerging distribution channels or

alternative forms of entertainment may have on us or the motion picture industry

The entertainment industry in general and the motion picture industry in particular continue to

undergo significant changes due in part to technological developments Due to rapid growth of

technology and shifting consumer tastes we cannot accurately predict the overall effect that

technological growth or the availability of alternative forms of entertainment may have on the

potential revenue from and profitability
of our animated feature films In addition certain outlets for

the distribution of motion pictures may not continue to have the public acceptance that they currently

have For example the availability of high-quality home entertainment systems may reduce the

publics desire to see motion pictures in the theaters In addition we cannot assure you that

consumers will continue to use the DVD format for their home entertainment or whether other

developing distribution channels such as video-on-demand or Internet distribution will be accepted

by the public Currently significant portion of our results of operations are due to DVD sales

During 2009 three retailers Wal-Mart Target and Best Buy accounted for approximately 60% of

the Companys domestic DVD sales If these and other retailers support of the DVD format

decreases the Companys results of operations could be materially adversely affected In addition if

other distribution channels such as Internet delivery of films are accepted by the public we cannot

assure you that we will be successful in exploiting such channels Moreover to the extent that other

distribution channels gain popular acceptance it is possible that demand for existing distribution

channels such as DVDs will decrease If we are unable to successfully exploit new distribution

channels or if they prove to be less profitable than existing channels our business results of

operations or financial condition could be materially adversely affected

Our operating results fluctuate significantly

We continue to expect significant fluctuations in our future quarterly and annual operating

results because of variety of factors including the following

the potential varying levels of success of our feature films and other entertainment

the timing of the domestic and international theatrical releases and home entertainment

release of our feature films
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our distribution arrangements with Paramount which cause us to recognize significantly

less revenue from film in the period of films initial theatrical release than we would

absent these agreements and

the timing of development expenses and varying levels of success of our new business

ventures

We currently operate principally in one business the production of animated family

entertainment and our lack of diversified business could adversely affect us

Unlike most of the major studios which are part
of large diversified corporate groups with

variety of other operations we currently depend primarily on the success of our feature films and

other properties For example unlike us many of the major studios are part
of corporate groups that

include television networks and cable channels that can provide stable sources of earnings and cash

flows that offset fluctuations in the financial performance of their feature films We on the other

hand currently derive substantially all of our revenue from single sourceour animated family

entertainmentand our lack of diversified business model could adversely affect us if our feature

films or other properties fail to perform to our expectations

The Company has recently developed and is currently in the process of developing number of

projects that are not feature filmswhich will involve upfront and ongoing expenses and may

not ultimately be successful

The Company has recently produced and is currently developing number of projects that are

not feature films as part
of the Companys plan of diversifying its revenue sources These projects

include Broadway musical and touring show animated television specials and series and online

virtual worlds These projects require varying amounts of upfront and ongoing expenditures some of

which are or may be significant and may place strain on the Companys management resources

While the Company currently believes that it has adequate sources of capital to fund these

development and operating expenditures there can be no assurances especially in the current credit

markets that such resources will be available to the Company Further to the extent that the

Company needs to hire additional personnel to develop or oversee these projects the Company may

be unable to hire talented individuals Finally we can not provide any assurances that all or any of

these projects will ultimately be completed or if completed successful

Animated films are expensive to produce and the uncertainties inherent in their production

could result in the expenditure of significant amounts on films that are abandoned or

significantly delayed

Animated films are expensive to produce The production completion and distribution of

animated feature films is subject to number of uncertainties including delays and increased

expenditures due to creative problems technical difficulties talent availability accidents natural

disasters or other events beyond our control Because of these uncertainties the projected costs of an

animated feature film at the time it is set for production may increase the date of completion may be

substantially delayed or the film may be abandoned due to the exigencies of production In extreme

cases film in production may be abandoned or significantly modified including as result of

creative changes after substantial amounts have been spent causing the write-off of expenses

incurred with respect to the film
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Animated films typically take longer to produce than live-action films which increases the

uncertainties inherent in their production and distribution

Animated feature films typically take three to four years to produce after the initial development

stage as opposed to an average of 12 to 18 months for live-action films The additional time that it

takes to produce and release an animated feature film increases the risk that our films in production

will fall out of favor with target
audiences and that competing films will be released in advance of or

concurrently with ours either of which risks could reduce the demand for or popular appeal of our

films

The production and marketing of animated feature films and other properties is capital-

intensive and our capacity to generate cash from our films may be insufficient to meet our

anticipated cash requirements

The costs to develop produce and market film are substantial In 2009 for example we spent

approximately $290 million to fund production costs excluding capitalized interest and overhead

expense and to make contingent compensation and residual payments For the year ending

December 31 2010 we expect our commitments to fund production costs excluding capitalized

interest and overhead expense and to make contingent compensation and residual payments on

films released to date will be approximately $467.5 million Although we retain the right to exploit

each of the films that we have previously released the size of our film library is insubstantial

compared to the film libraries of the major U.S movie studios which typically have the ability to

exploit hundreds of library titles Library titles can provide stable source of earnings and cash flows

that offset fluctuations in the financial performance of newly released films Many of the major

studios use these cash flows as well as cash flows from their other businesses to finance the

production and marketing of new feature films We are not able to rely on such cash flows and are

required to fund our films in development and production and other commitments with cash retained

from operations the proceeds of films that are generating revenue from theatrical home

entertainment and ancillary markets and borrowings under our $125 million revolving credit facility

If our films fail to perform we may be forced to seek substantial sources of outside financing Such

financing may not be available in sufficient amounts for us to continue to make substantial

investments in the production of new animated feature films or may be available only on terms that

are disadvantageous to us either of which could have material adverse effect on our growth or our

business

The costs of producing and marketing our feature films have steadily increased and may
increase in the future in part as result of our plans to produce films in stereoscopic 3D
which may make it more difficult for film to generate profit or compete against other films

The production and marketing of theatrical feature films require substantial capital and the costs

of producing and marketing feature films have generally increased in recent years These costs may

continue to increase in the future which may make it more difficult for our films to generate profit

or compete against other films Historically production costs and marketing costs have risen at rate

faster than increases in either domestic admission to movie theaters or admission ticket prices

continuation of this trend would leave us more dependent for revenue from other media such as

home entertainment television international markets and new media
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We released our first 3D film Monsters vs Aliens in 2009 We expect that all of our future films

will also be released in stereoscopic 3D The Company has implemented number of changes to its

production processes in order to produce stereoscopic 3D films These changes have increased the

costs of producing our films which may make it more difficult for film to generate profit There

are currently limited number of movie theaters that are capable of screening films in stereoscopic

3D Additionally other entertainment companies are planning to release films in stereoscopic 3D

which has increased the competition for 3D screens While the number of 3D-capable movie theaters

has increased and we believe will continue to increase over time the costs to theater owners of

purchasing 3D screening equipment may slow this increase especially if theater owners are

concerned about the availability of sufficient 3D titles to justify the expense While we believe that

consumers will find the 3D movie experience to be at least as enjoyable as the current

two-dimensional experience there can be no assurances about ultimate audience acceptance of the

format There can also be no assurances that sufficient number of consumers will be willing to pay

higher ticket prices for stereoscopic 3D films which may make it more difficult for us to recover the

higher production costs

We compete for audiences based on number of factors many of which are beyond our

control

The number of animated and live-action feature films released by competitors particularly the

major U.S motion picture studios may create an oversupply of product in the market and may make

it more difficult for our films to succeed In particular we compete directly against other animated

films and family-oriented live-action films Oversupply of such products especially of high-profile

event films such as ours may become most pronounced during peak release times such as school

holidays national holidays and the summer release season when theater attendance has traditionally

been highest Although we seek to release our films during peak release times we cannot guarantee

that we will be able to release all of our films during those times and therefore may miss potentially

higher gross box-office receipts In addition substantial majority of the motion picture screens in

the U.S typically are committed at any one time to only 10 to 15 films distributed nationally by

major studio distributors If our competitors were to increase the number of films available for

distribution and the number of exhibition screens especially screens capable of showing 3D films

remained unchanged it could be more difficult for us to release our films during optimal release

periods

Changes in the United States global or regional economic conditions could adversely affect the

profitability of our business

Beginning in 2008 the global economy began experiencing significant contraction with an

almost unprecedented lack of availability of business and consumer credit This current decrease and

any future decrease in economic activity in the United States or in other regions of the world in

which we do business could significantly and adversely affect our results of operations and financial

condition in number of ways Any decline in economic conditions may reduce the performance of

our theatrical and home entertainment releases and purchases of our licensed consumer products

thereby reducing our revenues and earnings We may also experience increased returns by the

retailers that purchase our home entertainment releases Further bankruptcies or similarevents by

retailers theater chains television networks other participants in our distribution chain or other

sources of revenue may cause us to incur bad debt expense at levels higher than historically

experienced or otherwise cause our revenues to decrease In periods of generally increasing prices or
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of increased price levels in particular sector such as the energy sector we may experience shift in

consumer demand away from the entertainment and consumer products we offer which could also

adversely affect our revenues and at the same time increase our costs

The seasonality of our businesses could exacerbate negative impacts on our operations

Our business is normally subject to seasonal variations based on the timing of theatrical motion

picture and home entertainment releases Release dates are determined by several factors including

timing of vacation and holiday periods and competition in the market Also revenues in our

consumer products business are influenced by both seasonal consumer purchasing behavior and the

timing of animated theatrical releases and generally peak in the fiscal quarter of films theatrical

release Accordingly if short-term negative impact on our business occurs during time of high

seasonal demand such as natural disaster or terrorist attack during the time of one of our theatrical

or home entertainment releases the effect could have disproportionate effect on our results for the

year

Strong existing film studios competing in the CG animated film market and the entrance of

additional competing film studios could adversely affect our business in several ways

CG animation has been successfully exploited by growing number of film studios since the

first CG animated feature film Toy Story was released by Pixar in 1995 In the past several years

number of studios have entered the CG animated film market thus increasing the number of CG

animated films released per year There are no substantial technological barriers to entry that prevent

other film studios from entering the field Furthermore advances in technology may substantially

decrease the time that it takes to produce CG animated feature film which could result in

significant number of new CG animated films or products The entrance of additional animation

companies into the CG animated feature film market could adversely impact us by eroding our

market share increasing the competition for CG animated film audiences and increasing the

competition for and cost of hiring and retaining talented employees particularly CG animators and

technical staff

Our success depends on certain key employees

Our success greatly depends on our employees In particular we are dependent upon the

services of Jeffrey Katzenberg our other executive officers and certain creative employees such as

directors and producers We do not maintain key person life insurance for any of our employees We

have entered into employment agreements with Mr Katzenberg and with all of our top executive

officers and production executives However although it is standard in the motion picture industry to

rely on employment agreements as method of retaining the services of key employees these

agreements cannot assure us of the continued services of such employees The loss of the services of

Mr Katzenberg or substantial group of key employees could have material adverse effect on our

business operating results or financial condition

Our scheduled releases of animated feature films and other projects may place significant

strain on our resources

We have established multiple creative and production teams so that we can simultaneously

produce more than one animated feature film In the past we have been required and may continue
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to be required to expand our employee base increase capital expenditures and procure additional

resources and facilities in order to accomplish the scheduled releases of our entertainment projects

This growth and expansion has placed and continues to place significant strain on our resources

We cannot provide any assurances that any of our projects will be released as targeted or that this

strain on resources will not have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or

results of operations

We are dependent on Paramount for the distribution and marketing of our feature films and

related products

In January 2006 we entered into the Paramount Agreements pursuant to which Paramount and

certain of its affiliates are responsible for the worldwide distribution and servicing of all of our films

in substantially all audio-visual media If Paramount fails to perform under either of the Paramount

Agreements it could have material adverse effect on our business reputation operating results or

financial condition In addition our grant of distribution and servicing rights to Paramount is

expressly subject to certain existing sub-distribution servicing and license agreements previously

entered into by Old DreamWorks Studios Pursuant to the Paramount Agreements we will continue

to license to Old DreamWorks Studios those distribution and servicing rights in and to existing and

future films to the extent necessary for Old DreamWorks Studios to comply with such existing

sub-distribution servicing and license agreements including the existing sub-distribution servicing

and licensing agreements that Old DreamWorks Studios has entered into with other third-party

distributors and service providers Upon expiration of our existing agreements all distribution and

servicing rights that are subject to such agreements will be automatically granted to Paramount for

the remainder of the term of the Paramount Agreements We cannot assure you that upon expiration

of such agreements Paramount will be able to replace such sub-distribution servicing and license

agreements on terms as favorable as Old DreamWorks Studios existing sub-distribution servicing

and license agreements For description of the terms of the Paramount Distribution Agreement and

the Paramount Fulfillment Services Agreement see Item 1BusinessDistribution and Servicing

ArrangementsHow We Distribute Promote and Market OurFilms

Although the Paramount Agreements obligate Paramount to distribute and service our films

Paramount is able to terminate the agreements upon the occurrence of certain events of default

including failure by us to deliver to Paramount minimum number of films over specified time

periods We are also able to terminate the agreements upon the occurrence of certain events of

default If Paramount fails to perform under the Paramount Agreements or the agreements are

terminated we may have difficulty finding replacement distributor and service provider in part

because our films could continue to be subject to the terms of the existing sub-distribution servicing

and licensing agreements that Old DreamWorks Studios Paramount or both have entered into with

third-party distributors and service providers that we have approved We cannot assure you that as

result of existing agreements or for other reasons we will be able to find replacement distributor or

service provider on terms as favorable as those in the Paramount Agreements

Furthermore in the event that the Paramount Agreements were terminated depending on the

arrangement that we negotiated with replacement distributor or fulfillment services provider we

could be required to directly incur distribution servicing and marketing expenses related to our films

which under the Paramount Agreements are incurred by Paramount Because we would expense

those costs as incurred significant fluctuations in our operating results could result

24



Paramount provides us with certain services which if terminated may increase our costs in

future periods

Under the terms of the Paramount Distribution Agreement Paramount and certain of its

affiliates have agreed to provide us with variety of services including music licensing music and

creative music business affairs archiving of film materials casting the calculation and

administration of residuals and contingent compensation for our motion pictures and compiling

preparing and checking credits to be accorded on our films and working and complying with MPAA
rules and regulations including obtaining the MPAA rating for all of our motion pictures

Paramount has the right to terminate service Paramount is providing under the Paramount

Distribution Agreement if we are in breach of material provision related to such service If any of

the services provided to us by Paramount is terminated we will be required to either enter into new

agreement with Paramount or another services provider or assume the responsibility for these

functions ourselves If we were to enter into new agreement with Paramount regarding any such

terminated services hire new services provider or assume such services ourselves the economic

terms of the new arrangement may be less favorable than our current arrangement with Paramount

which may adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations

We are dependent on Paramount for the timely and accurate reporting of financial information

related to the distribution of our films

The amount of our net revenue and associated gross profit recognized in any given quarter or

quarters from all of our filmsdepends on the timing accuracy and amount of information we receive

from Paramount our third party distributor and service provider Although we obtain from

Paramount the most current information available to recognize our revenue and determine our film

gross profits Paramount may make subsequent revisions to the information that it has provided

which could have significant impact on us in later periods In addition if we fail to receive accurate

information from Paramount or fail to receive it on timely basis it could have material adverse

effect on our business operating results or financial condition

We face risks relating to the international distribution of our films and related products

Because we have historically derived approximately 40% of our revenue from the exploitation

of our films in territories outside of the United States our business is subject to risks inherent in

international trade many of which are beyond our control These risks include

fluctuating foreign exchange rates For more detailed discussion of the potential effects of

fluctuating foreign exchange rates please see Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative

Disclosures About Market Risk herein

laws and policies affecting trade investment and taxes including laws and policies relating

to the repatriation of funds and withholding taxes and changes in these laws

differing cultural tastes and attitudes including varied censorship laws

differing degrees of protection for intellectual property

financial instability and increased market concentration of buyers in foreign television

markets

25



the instability of foreign economies and governments and

war and acts of terrorism

Piracy of motion pictures including digital and Internet piracy may decrease revenue received

from the exploitation of our films

Unauthorized copying and piracy are prevalent in various parts of the world including in

countries where we may have difficulty enforcing our intellectual property rights Motion picture

piracy is made easier by technological advances and the conversion of motion pictures into digital

formats which facilitates the creation transmission and sharing of high-quality unauthorized copies

of motion pictures The introduction of stereoscopic 3D technology in films may temporarily make

piracy more difficult during films initial theatrical release however it will not likely affect other

methods of obtaining unauthorized copies The increased consumer acceptance of entertainment

content delivered electronically and consumer acquisition of the hardware and software for

facilitating electronic delivery may also lead to greater public acceptance of unauthorized content

The proliferation
of unauthorized copies and piracy of these products has an adverse affect on our

business because these products reduce the revenue we receive from our legitimate products Under

our agreements with Paramount Paramount is substantially responsible for enforcing our intellectual

property rights with respect to all of our films subject to the Paramount Agreements and is required

to maintain security and anti-piracy measures consistent with the highest levels it maintains for its

own motion pictures in each territory in the world Other than the remedies we have in the Paramount

Agreements we have no way of requiring Paramount to take any anti-piracy actions and

Paramounts failure to take such actions may result in our having to undertake such measures

ourselves which could result in significant expenses and losses of indeterminate amounts of revenue

Even if applied there can be no assurance that the highest levels of security and anti-piracy measures

will prevent piracy

While we believe we currently have adequate internal control over financial reporting we are

required to assess our internal control over financial reporting on an annual basis and any

future adverse results from such assessment could result in loss of investor confidence in our

financial reports and have an adverse effect on our stock price

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section 404 and the accompanying rules and

regulations promulgated by the SEC to implement it require us to include in our Form 10-K an

annual report by our management regarding the effectiveness of our internal control over financial

reporting The report includes among other things an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal

control over financial reporting as of the end of our fiscal year This assessment must include

disclosure of any material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting identified by

management

During this process if our management identifies one or more material weaknesses in our

internal control over financial reporting that cannot be remediated in timely manner we will be

unable to assert such internal control is effective While we currently believe our internal control

over financial reporting is effective the effectiveness of our internal controls in future periods is

subject to the risk that our controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions and as
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result the degree of compliance of our internal control over financial reporting with the applicable

policies or procedures may deteriorate If we are unable to conclude that our internal control over

financial reporting is effective as of December 31 2010 or if our independent auditors disagree with

our conclusion we could lose investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial

reports which would have an adverse effect on our stock price

We could be adversely affected by strikes and other union activity

strike by one or more of the unions that provide personnel essential to the production of our

feature films could delay or halt our ongoing production activities Along with the major U.S film

studios we employ members of IATSE on many of our productions We are currently subject to

collective bargaining agreements with IATSE the Local 839 of IATSE the Animation Guild and

Affiliated Optical Electronic and Graphic Arts the Local 700 of IATSE the Motion Picture Editors

Guild and SAG In 2009 as result of our development of an online virtual world we became

signatory to collective bargain agreement with AFTRA We may also become subject to additional

collective bargaining agreements Such halt or delay depending on the length of time involved

could cause delay of the release date of our feature films and thereby could adversely affect the

revenue that the films generate In addition strikes by unions with which we do not have collective

bargaining agreement such as the 2008 strike by the Writers Guild of America can have adverse

effects on the entertainment industry in general and thus indirectly on us

Business interruptions could adversely affect our operations

Our operations are vulnerable to outages and interruptions due to fire floods power loss

telecommunications failures and similarevents beyond our control In addition our two studios are

located in Californiaone in Southern California and one in Northern California These areas in

California have in the past and may in the future be subject to earthquakes as well as electrical

blackouts as consequence of shortage of available electrical power Although we have developed

certain plans to respond in the event of disaster there can be no assurance that they will be effective

in the event of specific disaster In the event of short-term power outage we have installed UPS

uninterrupted power source equipment to protect our CG animation rendering equipment and other

sensitive equipment long-term power outage however could disrupt our operations Prices for

electricity have in the past risen dramatically and may increase in the future An increase in prices

would increase our operating costs which could in turn adversely affect our profitability Although

we currently carry business interruption insurance for potential losses including earthquake-related

losses there can be no assurance that such insurance will be sufficient to compensate us for losses

that may occur or that such insurance may continue to be available on affordable terms Any losses or

damages incurred by us could have material adverse effect on our business and results of

operations

Potential acquisitions could negatively affect our operating results

From time to time we may enter into discussions regarding acquisition opportunities both in

connection with our traditional animation business or new types of businesses To the extent that we

consummate acquisitions there can be no assurance that such acquisitions will be successfully

integrated by us or that such acquisitions will not adversely affect our results of operations cash
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flows or financial condition Moreover there can be no assurance that we will be able to identify

acquisition candidates available for sale at reasonable prices or consummate any acquisition or that

any discussions will result in an acquisition Any such acquisitions may require significant additional

capital resources and there can be no assurance that we will have access to adequate capital resources

to effect such future acquisitions

variety of uncontrollable events may reduce demand for our entertainment products or

otherwise adversely affect our business

Demand for our products and services are highly dependent on the general environment for

entertainment and other leisure activities The environment for these activities can be significantly

adversely affected in the United States or worldwide as result of variety of factors beyond our

control including terrorist activities military actions adverse weather conditions or natural disasters

or health concerns For example the terrorist attacks in New York and Washington D.C on

September 11 2001 disrupted commerce throughout the United States and Europe Such disruption

in the future could have material adverse effect on our business and results of operations Similarly

an outbreak of particular infectious disease could negatively affect the publics willingness to see

our films in theatres Finally the ongoing effects of global climate change could adversely affect our

business Various proposals have been discussed at the federal and state level to limit the carbon

emissions of business enterprises which if enacted could result in an increase in our costs of

operations The effects of climate change could also have unpredictable effects on consumer movie

attendance patterns

To be successful we must continue to attract and retain qualified personnel and our inability to

do so would adversely affect the quality of our films

Our success continues to depend to significant extent on our ability to identify attract hire

train and retain qualified creative technical and managerial personnel Competition for the caliber of

talent required to make our films particularly for our film directors producers writers animators

creative and technology personnel will continue to intensify as other studios some with substantially

larger financial resources than ours build their in-house animation or special-effects capabilities The

entrance of additional film studios into the animated film industry or the increased production

capacity of existing film studios will increase the demand for the limited number of talented CG

animators and programmers There can be no assurance that we will be successful in identifying

attracting hiring training and retaining such qualified personnel in the future If we are unable to

hire and retain qualified personnel in the future particularly
film directors producers animators

creative personnel and technical directors there could be material adverse effect on our business

operating results or financial condition

We depend on technology and computer systems for the timely and successful development of

our animated feature films and related products

Because we are dependent upon large number of software applications and hardware for the

development and production of our animated feature films and other projects an error or defect in the

software failure in the hardware failure of our backup facilities or delay in delivery of products

and services could result in significantly increased production costs for project Moreover if
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software or hardware problem is significant enough it could result in delays in one or more

productions which in turn could result in potentially significant delays in the release dates of our

feature films or affect our ability to complete the production of feature film or other project

Significant delays in production and significant delays in release dates as well as the failure to

complete production could have material adverse effect on our results of operations In addition

we must ensure that our production environment integrates the latest animation tools and techniques

developed in the industry so that our projects
remain competitive To accomplish this we can either

develop these capabilities by upgrading our proprietary software which can result in substantial

research and development costs or we can seek to purchase third-party licenses which can also

result in significant expenditures In the event we seek to develop these capabilities internally there

is no guarantee that we will be successful in doing so In the event we seek to obtain third-party

licenses we cannot guarantee that they will be available or once obtained will continue to be

available on commercially reasonable terms or at all

Our revenue may be adversely affected if we fail to protect our proprietary technology or

enhance or develop new technology

We depend on our proprietary technology to develop and produce our animated feature films

and other projects We rely on combination of patents copyright and trade secret protection and

non-disclosure agreements to establish and protect our proprietary rights From time to time we may

have patent applications pending in the United States or other countries We cannot provide any

assurances that patents will issue from any of these pending applications or that if patents do issue

any claims allowed will be sufficiently broad to protect our technology or that they will not be

challenged invalidated or circumvented In addition to produce our projects we also rely on third-

party software which is readily available to others Failure of our patents copyrights and trade secret

protection non-disclosure agreements and other measures to provide protection of our technology

and the availability of third-party software may make it easier for our competitors to obtain

technology equivalent to or superior to our technology If our competitors develop or license

technology that is superior to ours or that makes our technology obsolete we may be required to

incur significant costs to enhance or acquire new technology so that our feature films and other

projects remain competitive Such costs could have material adverse affect on our business

financial condition or results of operations

In addition we may be required to litigate
in the future to enforce our intellectual property

rights to protect our trade secrets to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of

others or to defend against claims of infringement or invalidity Any such litigation
could result in

substantial costs and diversion of resources could effectively prevent us from using important

technology and could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition or results of

operations

Third-party technology licenses may not continue to be available to us in the future

In addition to our proprietary technology we also rely on certain technology that we license

from third-parties including software that we use with our proprietary software We cannot provide

any assurances that these third-party technology licenses will continue to be available to us on

commercially reasonable terms or at all or that the technologies licenses will not result in intellectual
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property infringement claims by third parties The loss of or inability to maintain any of these

technology licenses could result in delays in project releases until equivalent technology could be

identified licensed and integrated to complete given project Any such delays or failures in project

releases could materially adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations

Others may assert intellectual property infringement claims against us

One of the risks of the CG animated film production business is the possibility of claims that our

projects and production techniques misappropriate or infringe the intellectual property rights of third

parties with respect to their technology software previously developed films stories characters

copyrights trademarks other entertainment or intellectual property We have received and are likely

to receive in the future claims of infringement of other parties proprietary rights There can be no

assurance that infringement or misappropriation claims or claims for indemnification resulting from

such claims will not be asserted or prosecuted against us or that any assertions or prosecutions will

not materially adversely affect our business financial condition or results of operations Regardless

of the validity or the successful assertion of such claims we could incur significant costs and

diversion of resources with respect to the defense thereof which could have material adverse effect

on our business financial condition or results of operations If any claims or actions are asserted

against us we may seek to obtain license of third-partys intellectual property rights We cannot

provide any assurances however that under such circumstances license would be available on

reasonable terms or at all

We may incur significant write-offs if our feature films and other projects do not perform well

enough to recoup production marketing and distribution costs

We are required to amortize capitalized production costs over the expected revenue streams as

we recognize revenue from the associated films or other projects The amount of production costs

that will be amortized each quarter depends on how much future revenue we expect to receive from

each project Unamortized production costs are evaluated for impairment each reporting period on

project-by-project basis If estimated remaining revenue is not sufficient to recover the unamortized

production costs the unamortized production costs will be written down to fair value In any given

quarter if we lower our previous forecast with respect to total anticipated revenue from any

individual feature film or other project we would be required to accelerate amortization of related

costs For instance in the third and fourth quarters of 2005 we incurred write-down of $3.9 million

and $25.1 million respectively for change in the estimated fair value of unamortized film costs for

Wallace Gromit The Curse of the Were-Rabbit Similarly in the quarter ended December 31

2006 we incurred write-down of $108.6 million for change in the estimated fair value of

unamortized film costs for Flushed Away

Such accelerated amortization would adversely impact our business operating results and

financial condition

30



If our stock price fluctuates you could lose significant part of your investment

The market price of our Class common stock may be influenced by many factors some of

which are beyond our control including those described above and the following

changes in financial estimates by analysts

announcements by us or our competitors of significant contracts productions acquisitions

or capital commitments

variations in quarterly operating results

general economic conditions

terrorist acts

future sales of our common stock and

investor perception of us and the filmmaking industry

Our stock price may also experience fluctuations as result of the limited number of

outstanding shares that are able to be sold in an unrestricted manner often referred to as the public

float As result of our limited public float large transactions by institutional investors may result

in increased volatility in our stock price In addition the stock market in general has experienced

extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated to and disproportionate to the

operating performance of movie studios These broad market and industry factors may materially

reduce the market price of our Class common stock regardless of our operating performance

Future sales of our shares including sales that may occur in connection with follow-on

offerings that we have agreed to effect for certain of our stockholders may cause the market

price of our Class common stock to drop significantly even if our business is doing well

Each of Jeffrey Katzenberg David Geffen or entities controlled by them or their permitted

transferees is able to sell shares in the public market from time to time without registering them

subject to certain limitations on the timing amount and method of those sales imposed by Rule 144

under the Securities Act In addition entities controlled by each of Jeffrey Katzenberg and David

Geffen and certain of their permitted transferees have the right to cause us to register the sale of

shares of Class common stock beneficially owned by them If any of Jeffrey Katzenberg David

Geffen or entities controlled by them or their respective permitted transferees were to sell large

number of their shares the market price of our Class common stock could decline significantly In

addition the perception in the public markets that sales by them might occur could also adversely

affect the market price of our Class common stock

Also in the future we may issue our securities in connection with investments and acquisitions

The amount of our common stock issued in connection with an investment or acquisition could

constitute material portion of our then-outstanding common stock
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few significant stockholders control the direction of our business The concentrated

ownership of our common stock and certain corporate governance arrangements will prevent

you and other stockholders from influencing significant corporate decisions

Jeffrey Katzenberg David Geffen and entities controlled by them own 100% of our Class

common stock representing approximately 13% of our common equity and approximately 70% of

the total voting power of our common stock Accordingly Jeffrey Katzenberg and David Geffen or

entities controlled by them generally have the collective ability to control all matters requiring

stockholder approval including the nomination and election of directors the determination of our

corporate and management policies and the determination without the consent of our other

stockholders of the outcome of any corporate transaction or other matter submitted to our

stockholders for approval including potential mergers or acquisitions asset sales and other

significant corporate transactions In addition the disproportionate voting rights of the Class

common stock relative to the Class common stock may make us less attractive takeover target

The interests of our controlling and significant stockholders may conflict with the interests of

our other stockholders

We cannot assure you that the interests of Jeffrey Katzenberg David Geffen or entities

controlled by them will coincide with the interests of the holders of our Class common stock For

example Jeffrey Katzenberg and David Geffen or entities controlled by them could cause us to

make acquisitions that increase the amount of our indebtedness or outstanding shares of common

stock or sell revenue-generating assets Jeffrey Katzenberg and David Geffen may pursue acquisition

opportunities that may be complementary to our business and as result those acquisition

opportunities may not be available to us Our restated certificate of incorporation provides for the

allocation of corporate opportunities between us on the one hand and certain of our founding

stockholders on the other hand which could prevent us from taking advantage of certain corporate

opportunities So long as Jeffrey Katzenberg David Geffen or entities controlled by them continue to

collectively own shares of our Class common stock with significant voting power Jeffrey

Katzenberg and David Geffen or entities controlled by them will continue to collectively be able to

strongly influence or effectively control our decisions

Additionally in connection with the Separation we entered into tax receivable agreement with

an affiliate of Paul Allen who was previously director and significant stockholder As result of

certain transactions that entities controlled by Paul Allen engaged in the tax basis of our assets was

partially increased the Tax Basis Increase and the amount of tax we may pay in the future is

expected to be reduced during the approximately 15-year amortization period for such increased tax

basis Under the tax receivable agreement we are required to pay to such affiliate 85% of the amount

of any cash savings in certain taxes resulting from the Tax Basis Increase and certain other related

tax benefits subject to repayment if it is determined that these savings should not have been available

to us During the years ended December 31 2008 and 2009 we made payments totaling $37.6

million and $28.5 million respectively to Mr Allens affiliate As of December 31 2009 we have

recorded liability of $67.5 million to Mr Allens affiliate As result the interests of Paul Allen

and entities controlled by him and the holders of our Class common stock could differ The actual

amount and timing of any payments under the tax receivable agreement will vary depending upon

number of factors The payments that may be made to Paul Allens affiliate pursuant to the tax
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receivable agreement could be substantial For further discussion of the tax receivable agreement

see Note to our audited consolidated financial statements and Item 7Managements Discussion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsCritical Accounting Policies and

EstimatesProvision for Income Taxes

Anti-takeover provisions of our charter and by-laws as well as Delaware law may reduce the

likelihood of any potential change of control or unsolicited acquisition proposal that you might

consider favorable

The anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law impose various impediments to the ability of

third-party to acquire control of us even if change in control would be beneficial to our existing

stockholders Additionally provisions of our charter and by-laws could deter delay or prevent

third-party from acquiring us even if doing so would benefit our stockholders These provisions

include

the division of our capital stock into Class common stock entitled to one vote per share

and Class con-imon stock entitled to 15 votes per share all of which Class common

stock will initially be owned or controlled by Jeffrey Katzenberg and David Geffen

the authority of the board to issue preferred stock with terms as the board may determine

the absence of cumulative voting in the election of directors

following such time as the outstanding shares of Class common stock cease to represent

majority of the combined voting power of the voting stock prohibition on stockholder

action by written consent

limitations on who may call special meetings of stockholders

advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals

following such time as the outstanding shares of Class common stock cease to represent

majority of the combined voting power of the voting stock super-majority voting

requirements for stockholders to amend the by-laws and

stockholder super-majority voting requirements to amend certain provisions of the charter

Changes in effective tax rates or adverse outcomes resulting from examination of our income

tax returns could adversely affect our results

Our future effective tax rates could be adversely affected by changes in the valuation of our

deferred tax assets and liabilities or by changes in tax laws regulations accounting principles or

interpretations thereof In addition we are subject to the examination of our income tax returns by the

Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities The Internal Revenue Service is currently

auditing our tax returns for the years ended December 31 2007 and 2008 Our California state tax

returns for the period October 27 2004 through December 31 2004 and for the years ended

December 31 2005 2006 and 2007 are currently under examination by the California Franchise Tax

Board We regularly assess the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to

determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes While we believe that we have adequately

provided for our tax liabilities including the outcome of these examinations it is possible that the
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amount paid upon resolution of issues raised may differ from the amount provided There can be no

assurance that the outcomes from these examinations will not have an adverse effect on our financial

condition or results of operations

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

The Company has received no written comments regarding its periodic or current reports from

the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission that were issued 180 days or more preceding

the end of its 2009 fiscal year and that remain unresolved

Item Properties

We conduct our business primarily in two studiosin Glendale California where we are

headquartered and in Redwood City California

Glendale Animation Campus

Our Glendale animation campus houses majority of our employees In 2008 we began long-

term construction project to expand the size of our headquarters to approximately 500000 square

feet We expect this project to be completed during the quarter ended June 30 2010

In addition to the Glendale animation campus in February 2008 we entered into three-year

lease for approximately 47000 square feet of additional office space in Glendale California We

have exercised our early-termination right under the lease agreement and will be vacating this space

during the summer of 2010

Redwood City Facility

In 2002 we entered into 10-year lease agreement for our approximately 100000 square feet of

office space in Redwood City California In September 2009 we entered into three-year lease

agreement for an additional 15000 square feet of office space in Redwood City

Item Legal Proceedings

From time to time we are involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our

business typically intellectual property litigation and infringement claims related to our feature

films which could cause us to incur significant expenses or prevent us from releasing film We also

have been the subject of patent and copyright claims relating to technology and ideas that we may

use or feature in connection with the production marketing or exploitation of our feature films

which may affect our ability to continue to do so While the resolution of these matters cannot be

predicted with certainty we do not believe based on current knowledge that any existing legal

proceedings or claims are likely to have material adverse effect on our financial position results of

operations or cash flows
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Item Submission of Matters to Vote of Security Holders

2009

No matters were submitted to vote of the shareholders during the quarter ended December 31

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth information as to our executive officers together with their

positions and ages

Name

Jeffrey Katzenberg

Lewis Coleman

Ann Daly

Andrew Chang

Anne Globe

William Damaschke

John Batter

Philip Cross

Rich Sullivan

Daniel Satterthwaite

Heather OConnor

Age Position

59 Chief Executive Officer and Director

68 President Chief Financial Officer and

Director

53 Chief Operating Officer

44 General Counsel and Secretary

47 Head of Worldwide Marketing and

Consumer Products

46 Co-President of Production and President

of Live Theatrical

46 Co-President of Production

64 Chief Accounting Officer

37 Head of Corporate Finance

41 Head of Human Resources

39 Chief Accounting Officer effective as of

February 27 2010

Our executive officers are appointed by and serve at the discretion of the Board of Directors

Each executive officer is an employee of DreamWorks Animation There is no family relationship

between any executive officer or director of DreamWorks Animation Set forth below is brief

description of the business experience of the persons serving as our executive officers

Jeffrey KatzenbergChief Executive Officer and Director Mr Katzenberg has served as our

Chief Executive Officer and member of our Board of Directors since October 2004 Mr Katzenberg

co-founded and was principal member of Old DreamWorks Studios from its founding in October

1994 until its sale to Paramount in January 2006 Prior to founding Old DreamWorks Studios

Mr Katzenberg served as chairman of the board of The Walt Disney Studios from 1984 to 1994 As

chairman he was responsible for the worldwide production marketing and distribution of all Disney

filmed entertainment including motion pictures television cable syndication home entertainment

and interactive entertainment During his tenure the studio produced number of live-action and

animated box office hits including Who Framed Roger Rabbit The Little Mermaid Beauty and the

Beast Aladdin and The Lion King Prior to joining Disney Mr Katzenberg was president of

Paramount Studios Mr Katzenberg serves on the boards of The Motion Picture and Television Fund

The Museum of Moving Image Cedars-Sinai Medical Center California Institute of the Arts and

The Simon Wiesenthal Center He is co-chairman of each of the Creative Rights Committee of the

Directors Guild of America and the Committee on the Professional Status of Writers of the Writers
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Guild of America In addition his fundraising efforts on behalf of AIDS Project Los Angeles have

helped to provide its clients with medical and social services As director Mr Katzenberg serves

on and chairs our Nominating and Governance Committee

Lewis ColemanPresident Chief Financial Officer and Director Mr Coleman has served as

our President since December 2005 our Chief Financial Officer since February 2007 and member

of our Board of Directors since December 2006 He served as our Chief Accounting Officer from

May 2007 until September 2007 He also previously served as member of our Board of Directors

from October 2004 until his resignation from our Board of Directors in December 2005 to assume his

new role as President Previously he was the president of the Gordon and Betty Moore Foundation

from its founding in November 2000 to December 2004 Prior to that Mr Coleman was employed by

Banc of America Securities formerly known as Montgomery Securities where he was senior

managing director from 1995 to 1998 and chairman from 1998 to 2000 Before he joined

Montgomery Securities Mr Coleman spent 10 years at the Bank of America and Bank of America

Corporation where he was head of capital markets head of the world banking group and vice

chairman of the board and chief financial officer He spent the previous 13 years at Wells Fargo

Bank where his positions included head of international banking chief personnel officer and

chairman of the credit policy committee He serves as the Chairman of the Board of Northrop

Grumman Corporation Previously Mr Coleman served on the boards of directors of Regal

Entertainment Group until December 2005 and Chiron Corporation until April 2006

Ann DalyChief Operating Officer Ms Daly has served as our Chief Operating Officer since

October 2004 Previously Ms Daly served as head of feature animation at Old DreamWorks Studios

since July 1997 where she guided the strategic operational administrative and production-oriented

concerns of the animation division as well as overseeing the worldwide video operations of Old

DreamWorks Studios Prior to joining Old DreamWorks Studios Ms Daly served as president of

Buena Vista Home Video BVHV North America division of The Walt Disney Company
where she presided over what was then the single largest

home entertainment company in the world

Ms Daly was responsible for marketing sales distribution operations production and all other

facets of the home entertainment division During her 14-year tenure at The Walt Disney Company
she was home entertainment industry pioneer orchestrating many innovations such as the

direct-to-video business where high-quality family-oriented films were produced exclusively for the

home entertainment market Under Ms Dalys direction BVHV won several vendor awards for

marketing and advertising as well as for its state-of-the-art distribution shipping and inventory

replenishment systems Ms Daly received her .A in economics from The University of California

Los Angeles

Andrew ChangGeneral Counsel and Corporate Secretary Mr Chang has served as our

General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since January 2010 Mr Chang joined Old DreamWorks in

2002 as Head of Litigation and Head of Legal and Business Affairs for DreamWorks Distribution

He served as our Head of Litigation and Technology Law from 2004 until 2010 Prior to joining Old

DreamWorks Mr Chang was Vice President of Legal with Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Studios Inc Prior

to joining MGM Mr Chang was an associate with Gibson Dunn Crutcher LLP Mr Chang

received J.D from Georgetown University Law Center and an A.B in Politics from Princeton

University
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Anne GlobeHead of Worldwide Marketing and Consumer Products Ms Globe has served as

our Head of Worldwide Marketing and Consumer Products since January 2007 Previously

Ms Globe served as the Companys head of worldwide consumer products and promotions since

January 2005 Ms Globe joined Old DreamWorks Studios in 1996 where she was involved in all

aspects of its merchandising and promotional activities She held variety of positions with Old

DreamWorks Studios including serving as head of marketing and head of promotions Prior to

joining Old DreamWorks Studios Ms Globe was Vice President of Promotions at MCAlUniversal

where she was responsible for national promotion strategies for number of the companys films

Ms Globe received B.S in Marketing and B.S in Communications from Syracuse University

William DamaschkeCo-P resident of Production and President of Live Theatrical

Mr Damaschke has served in his current position since October 2007 Mr Damaschke joined Old

DreamWorks Studios in 1995 and has served in variety of capacities since such time including

serving as Head of Creative Production from 1999 until 2005 and as Head of Creative Production and

Development from 2005 until October 2007 During his career with the Company Mr Damaschke

has served as producer on Shark Tale and executive producer on Over the Hedge and worked on

Shrek Shrek Wallace Gromit The Curse of the Were-Rabbit and Madagascar

John BatterCo-President of Production Mr Batter has served in his current position since

October 2007 Mr Batter joined the Company in January 2006 as Head of Production Operations

FromJanuary 2000 until January 2006 Mr Batter was with Electronic Arts Inc serving in variety

of capacities including Group Studio General Manager and General Manager of EA Mobile From

1995 until 2000 Mr Batter worked in variety of positions with Old DreamWorks Studios

including serving as Chief Financial Officer of DreamWorks Interactive joint venture between

DreamWorks and Microsoft Corporation and as Chief Financial Officer of the Companys PDIJ

DreamWorks unit

Philip CrossChief Accounting Officer Mr Cross has served as our Chief Accounting

Officer since September 2007 From June 2006 until joining the Company Mr Cross served as an

independent consultant including to the Company From 1980 until his retirement in June 2006 he

was partner with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and its predecessor entities most recently serving

as senior partner in that firms Technology Information Communications and Entertainment

practice Mr Cross is certified public accountant inactive and member of the American Institute

of Certified Public Accountants Mr Cross has over 35 years experience in film and entertainment

accounting Mr Cross previously was member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England

and Wales and also was on the Board of Directors of the American Cinematheque and financial

advisor to the British American Film and Television Academy of Los Angeles In December 2009

the Company announced that Mr Cross will be stepping down from his position as Chief Accounting

Officer as of February 26 2010

Rich SullivanHead of Corporate Finance Mr Sullivan has served as our Head of Corporate

Finance since October 2008 He previously held the position of Head of Investor Relations since

joining the Company in 2005 During his term at the Company Mr Sullivan has been directly

involved with treasury corporate communications corporate development and strategic planning

Prior to joining the Company Mr Sullivan served as Vice President of Investor Relations for ATT
Corp from 2002 until 2005 during which time he was also member of ATTs Financial
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Leadership Team Prior to his role in Investor Relations Mr Sullivan played role on ATTs
mergers and acquisitions team as well as in ATT Business Services and Solutions organization

Prior to joining ATT Mr Sullivan worked for Deutsche Bank Securities as member of its

mergers and acquisitions investment banking group focusing on telecommunications Mr Sullivan

holds bachelors degree in Economics from Hamilton College and an MBA from Columbia

University

Daniel SatterthwaiteHead of Human Resources Mr Satterthwaite has served as our Head of

Human Resources since joining the Company in September 2007 Prior to joining the Company Mr

Satterthwaite was with Blockbuster Inc from 1993 At Blockbuster Mr Satterthwaite served in

variety of positions of increasing responsibility most recently as Senior Vice President of Worldwide

Human Resources

Heather OConnorChief Accounting Officer effective as of February 27 2010

Ms OConnor has served as our Head of SEC Reporting and Accounting Technical Research since

January 2006 Prior to DreamWorks Animation Ms OConnor filled variety of roles with

increasing levels of responsibility within the Accounting and Financial Planning and Analysis areas

at Old DreamWorks As the Assistant Controller of Old DreamWorks Ms OConnor was heavily

involved in the sale of that company to Paramount and the Separation Prior to joining Old

DreamWorks Ms OConnor worked as an audit senior at Arthur Andersen LLP In addition

Ms OConnor currently serves as the Treasurer for the non-profit theater company Needtheater

Ms OConnor received Bachelor of Science in Accountancy from the University of Illinois

Urbana-Champaign and is certified public accountant inactive in California
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Price of Our Class Common Stock

Our Class common stock is currently listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market

NASDAQ under the symbol DWA Prior to February 26 2009 our Class common stock was

listed on the New York Stock Exchange NYSE The following table sets forth for the periods

indicated the high and low sale prices of our Class common stock on the NASDAQ for dates on or

after February 26 2009 and the NYSE for dates prior to February 26 2009

Year Ended December 31 2008 High Low

First Quarter $26.55 $21.87

SecondQuarter $31.88 $25.74

Third Quarter $32.57 $28.53

Fourth Quarter $31.51 $20.57

Year Ended December 312009 High Low

First Quarter $26.18 $17.62

SecondQuarter $29.54 $18.37

Third Quarter $36.82 $26.16

Fourth Quarter $40.53 $31.90

On February 19 2010 the last quoted price per share of our Class common stock on the

NASDAQ was $40.73 As of February 19 2010 there were approximately 14972 stockholders of

record of our Class common stock Because many of our shares of Class common stock are held

by brokers and other institutions on behalf of stockholders we are unable to estimate the total

number of stockholders represented by these record holders As of January 29 2010 there were five

stockholders of record of our Class common stock

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on shares of our common stock Any future

change in our dividend policy will be made at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend

on contractual restrictions contained in our credit facility or other agreements our results of

operations earnings capital requirements and other factors considered relevant by our board of

directors See Note to the audited consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this

Form 10-K for discussion of restrictions on our ability to pay dividends contained in our credit

facility and other agreements
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table shows Company repurchases of its common stock for each calendar month

for the three months ended December 31 2009

Maximum Number
or Approximate

Total Number of Dollar Value

Shares Purchased of Shares That May
Total Number of Average as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Shares Price Paid Announced Plan Under the Plan or

Purchased1 per Share or Program2 Program2

October 1-October 31 2009 $150000000

November 1-November 30

2009 $150000000

December 1-December 31 2009 $150000000

Total

Does not include shares forfeited to the Company upon the expiration or cancellation of

unvested restricted stock awards

In April 2009 the Companys Board of Directors approved stock repurchase program pursuant

to which the Company may repurchase up to an aggregate of $150 million of its outstanding

stock

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31 2009 with respect to

shares of our Class common stock that may be issued under our 2004 Omnibus Incentive

Compensation Plan the 2004 Plan and 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan the 2008

Plan

Number of securities

to be issued upon
exercise of Weighted-average Number of securities remaining

outstanding exercise price of available for future issuance

options warrants outstanding options excluding securities

and rights warrants and rights reflected in column

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans

approved by

securityholders 7831447 $28.30 3078084

Equity compensation plans not

approved by

securityholders ______ _________

Total 7831447 $28.30 3078084

The 2008 Plan was approved by the Companys stockholders and became effective in May

2008 after which time no new equity awards may be made under the 2004 Plan The 2008 Plan

provides that any shares with respect to awards under the 2004 Plan that are forfeited or cancelled

after the effective date of the 2008 Plan will thereafter become eligible for issuance under the 2008

Plan
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Stock Performance Graph

The stock price performance graph below which assumes $100 investment on December 31

2004 and reinvestment of any dividends compares DreamWorks Animations total stockholder

return against the NYSE Composite Index NASDAQ Composite Index and the Standard Poors

Movies and Entertainment Index for the period beginning December 31 2004 through December 31

2009 The graph includes two broad-based market indices the NYSE Composite Index and the

NASDAQ Composite Index because during 2009 the Companys Class common stock was

transferred from the NYSE to the Nasdaq Global Select Market In previous years Annual Reports

on Form 10-K the graph included solely the NYSE Composite Index No cash dividends have been

declared on DreamWorks Animations Class Common Stock since the IPO The comparisons in

the table are required by the SEC and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of possible future

performance of DreamWorks Animations Class Common Stock

The comparisons shown in the graph below are based on historical data and the Company

cautions that the stock price performance shown in the graph below is not indicative of and is not

intended to forecast the potential
future performance of our common stock Information used in the

graph was obtained from source believed to be reliable but the Company is not responsible for any

errors or omissions in such information
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The following graph and related information is being furnished solely to accompany this Form 10-K

pursuant to Item 201e of Regulation S-K It shall not be deemed soliciting materials or to be filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission other than as provided in Item 201 nor shall such information be

incorporated by reference into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 except to the extent that we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth our selected financial information derived from the audited

consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 2007 2006

and 2005

The historical selected financial information presented below may not be indicative of our future

performance The historical selected financial information should be read in conjunction with

Item 7Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

the audited consolidated financial statements and the notes to our audited consolidated financial

statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K

In thousands except per share data

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Statements of Income

Revenues 725179 650052 767178 394842 462316

Operating income loss 193296 171827 291314 1118 114875

Net income 151035 142498 218364 15125 104585

Basic net income per share 1.75 1.59 2.18 0.15 1.01

Diluted net income per

share23 1.73 1.57 2.17 0.15 1.01

Balance Sheets

Total cash and cash

equivalents 231245 262644 292489 506304 403796

Total assets 1394597 1306058 1327784 1280469 1313176

Total borrowings4 70059 70059 119950 194531

Total stockholders equity 1152590 1017352 1018575 1033268 946170

The basic per share amounts for each year are calculated using the weighted average number of

shares of common stock outstanding for each year

The diluted per share amounts include dilutive common stock equivalents using the treasury

stock method

The following table sets forth in thousands the weighted average number of options to

purchase shares of common stock stock appreciation rights shares of restricted common stock

and equity awards subject to performance or market conditions excluded from the computation

of diluted net income per share because they were anti-dilutive

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

Options to purchase shares of common stock

and stock appreciations rights 5124 4558 2748 2108 2857

Equity awards subject to performance or

market conditions 2187 257 1849 1780 1711

Total 7311 4815 4597 3888 4568
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In addition as result of the acquisition of Old DreamWorks Studios by Viacom on

January 31 2006 approximately 300000 unvested shares of restricted stock and 597000

unvested options to purchase shares of the Companys Class common stock which

represented the unvested portions of equity awards granted to certain employees of Old

DreamWorks Studios under the 2004 Plan as of such date were forfeited and cancelled

respectively In addition approximately 531000 vested options to purchase shares of the

Companys Class common stock held by certain employees of Old DreamWorks Studios were

also cancelled in connection with this acquisition

Total borrowings include obligations under capital leases bank borrowings and other debt

Universal Studios advance and debt allocated by Old DreamWorks Studios As of December 31

2009 all of these items had been repaid in accordance with the respective terms of the various

agreements
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations

This section and other parts of this Form 10-K contain forward-looking statements that involve

risks and uncertainties Our actual results may differ significantly from the results discussed in the

forward-looking statements You should read the following discussion and analysis in conjunction

with our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto and the Risk Factors

section of this Form 10-K in Part Item 1A as well as other cautionary statements and risks

described elsewhere in this Form 10-K before deciding to purchase hold or sell our common stock

Our Business and Distribution and Servicing Arrangements

Our business is currently primarily devoted to developing and producing animated feature films

Our films are distributed in the worldwide theatrical home entertainment and television markets by

Paramount pursuant to distribution agreement and fulfillment services agreement collectively

the Paramount Agreements We generally retain all other rights to exploit our films including

commercial tie-in and promotional rights with respect to each film as well as merchandising

interactive literary publishing music publishing and soundtrack rights Please see Part Item

BusinessDistribution and Servicing ArrangementsHow We Distribute Promote and Market our

Films of this Form 10-K for discussion of our distribution and servicing arrangements with

Paramount In addition we continue to expand our business of creating high-quality entertainment

through the development and production of non-theatrical special content such as television specials

and series live theatrical stage performances and an online virtual world games based on our films

Our Revenues and Costs

Sources of Revenues

Feature Films

Our feature films are currently the source of significant percentage of our revenues We derive

revenue from our distributors worldwide exploitation of our feature films in theaters and in markets

such as home entertainment pay and free broadcast television and other ancillary markets Pursuant

to the Paramount Agreements prior to reporting any revenue for one of our feature films to us

Paramount is entitled to retain fee of 8.0% of gross revenue without deduction for distribution

and marketing costs and third-party distribution fees and sales agent fees and ii recoup all of its

distribution and marketing costs with respect to the exploitation of our films on film-by-film basis

As such under the Paramount Agreements each films total expenses and fees are offset against that

films revenues on worldwide basis across all markets and Paramount reports no revenue to the

Company until the first period in which an individual films cumulative worldwide gross revenues

exceed its cumulative worldwide gross distribution fee and costs which may be several quarters after

films initial theatrical release Additionally as the cumulative revenues and cumulative costs for

each individual film are commingled between all markets and geographical territories and Paramount

only reports additional revenue to the Company for film in those reporting periods in which that

films cumulative worldwide gross revenues continue to exceed its cumulative worldwide gross

costs the Companys reported revenues in any period are often result of gross revenues generated

in one or several territories being offset by the gross costs of both related and unrelated territories
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Our films are distributed in foreign countries and in recent years we have derived

approximately 40% of our revenue from foreign countries significant amount of our transactions

in foreign countries are conducted in the local currencies and as result fluctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates can affect our business results of operations and cash flow For detailed

discussion of our foreign currency risk please see Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative

Disclosures About Market RiskMarket and Exchange Rate RiskForeign Currency Risk of this

Form 10-K

Theatrical and Home Entertainment

Our films are distributed in the worldwide theatrical and home entertainment markets by

Paramount Prior to January 2009 Paramount reported our international theatrical results on

30-day lag we eliminated this 30-day lag effective January 2009 This change in reporting did not

have material impact on our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31

2009 International home entertainment results continue to be reported on 30-day lag

Historically there has been close correlation between the success of film in the domestic box

office market and the films success in the international theatrical and worldwide home entertainment

markets In general films that achieve domestic box office success also tend to experience success in

the home entertainment and international theatrical markets While we continue to believe that

domestic box office performance is key indicator of films potential performance in these

subsequent markets we do not believe that it is the only factor influencing the films success in these

markets and recognize that range of other market and film-specific factors such as whether the film

is an original or sequel can have significant impact on films performance in the international

theatrical market as well as in the worldwide home entertainment and television markets In addition

our films have experienced meaningful growth in their international box office receipts over the past

couple of years generally due to the growth in developing theatrical markets

The initial release in the domestic and international home entertainment markets typically

occurs three to six months following the films theatrical release Accordingly film theatrically

released during the spring or summer is typically released into the home entertainment market during

the holiday season of that same year and film theatrically released in the fall or winter is typically

released into the home entertainment market in the winter or early spring of the following year

International home entertainment releases are handled on market-by-market basis depending upon

the timing of the theatrical release in that country and other market factors Over the past couple of

years the home entertainment market has contributed less to the overall revenue for our more recent

films than in the past due to maturing market and increased competition

Television

Our films are distributed in the worldwide free and pay television markets by our distributor

Our distributor licenses our films pursuant to output agreements and individual and package film

agreements which generally provide that the exhibitor pay fee for each film exhibited during the

specified license period for that film which may vary according to the theatrical success of the film

Our distributor generally enters into license and/or output agreements for both pay and free television

exhibition on worldwide basis with respect to our films
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The majority of our revenue from television licensing is based on predetermined rates and

schedules that have been established as part of output agreements between our distributor and various

television licensees Typically the majority of the license fee for domestic pay television is

recognized by our distributor 12 months after the film has been released in the domestic theatrical

market The license fee for the domestic network television market is typically recognized by our

distributor two and half years after the domestic theatrical release of the film Internationally the

majority of television rights are governed by output agreements on country-by-country basis While

every film is different we expect that under our distributors current international television deals

the license fees generated in the international pay television market will typically begin to be

recognized by our distributor approximately 14 months after the domestic theatrical release and in

the international free television markets approximately two and half years after the domestic

theatrical release of our films In both the international pay and free television markets revenue is

typically recognized by our distributor over several quarters as our films become available for airing

in each country around the world We currently believe that under existing market conditions we

could not enter into new television licensing agreements on terms as favorable as those obtained in

the past

Licensing/Merchandising and Television Specials

We generate royalty-based revenues from the licensing of our character and film elements to

consumer product companies worldwide In addition we recently have begun to expand our business

beyond our core feature film business including the development production and licensing of

animated television specials and live theatrical stage performances For certain properties we have

recently entered into exclusive licensing and promotional arrangements These activities are not

typically subject to the Paramount Agreements and accordingly we receive payment and record

revenues directly
from third parties

For detailed discussion of our critical accounting policies related to revenue recognition

please see Critical Accounting Policies and EstimatesRevenue Recognition

Costs of Revenues

Our costs of revenues primarily include the amortization of capitalized production overhead

and interest costs participation and residual costs for our feature films and television specials and

write-offs of amounts previously capitalized for titles not expected to be released or released titles

not expected to recoup their capitalized costs Generally given the structure of our distribution

arrangements our costs of revenues do not include distribution and marketing costs or third-party

distribution and fulfillment services fees associated with our feature films Distribution and

marketing costs for feature films would only be included in our costs of revenues to the extent that

we caused Paramount to make additional expenditures in excess of agreed amounts See Item

BusinessDistribution and Servicing ArrangementsHow We Distribute Promote and Market our

Films In addition costs of revenues also include direct costs for sales commissions to outside third

parties for the licensing and merchandising of our characters and marketing and promotion costs and

other product costs associated with Shrek The Musical and certain television specials as these

activities are not typically subject to the Paramount Agreements
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Capitalized production costs represent the costs incurred to develop and produce our animated

films and television specials which primarily consist of compensation including salaries bonuses

stock compensation and fringe benefits for animators and voice talent which in the case of sequels

can be significant equipment and other direct operating costs relating to the production Capitalized

production overhead generally represents the compensation including salaries bonuses and stock

compensation of individual employees or entire departments with exclusive or significant

responsibilities
for the production of our films or television specials Unamortized capitalized

production costs are evaluated for impairment each reporting period on title-by-title basis If

estimated remaining revenue is not sufficient to recover the unamortized capitalized production costs

for that title the unamortized capitalized production costs will be written down to fair value

determined using net present value calculation In addition in the event film or television special

is not set for production within three years from the first time costs are capitalized or the film or

television special is abandoned all such capitalized production costs are generally expensed

We are responsible for certain contingent compensation or participations paid to creative

participants such as writers producers directors voice talent animators and other persons or

companies associated with the production of film or television special Generally these payments

are dependent on the performance of the film and are based on factors such as domestic box office

and/or total revenue recognized by our distributor related to the film In some cases particularly with

respect to sequels participation costs can be significant We are also responsible for residuals which

are payments based on revenue generated by the home entertainment and television markets and

generally made to third parties pursuant to collective bargaining union or guild agreements or for

providing certain services such as recording or synchronization services

Capitalized production costs and participations and residual costs are amortized and included in

costs of revenues in the proportion that the revenue for each film or television special Current

Revenue during the period bears to its respective estimated remaining total revenue to be received

from all sources Ultimate Revenue as of the beginning of the current fiscal period The amount

of capitalized production costs that are amortized each period will therefore depend on the ratio of

Current Revenue to Ultimate Revenue for each film or television special for such period Because the

profitability for each title varies depending upon its individual projection of Ultimate Revenues and

its amount of capitalized costs incurred total amortization may vary from period to period due to

several factors including changes in the mix of titles earning revenue ii changes in any titles

Ultimate Revenue and capitalized costs and iiiwrite-downs of capitalized production costs due to

changes in the estimated fair value of unamortized capitalized production costs Additionally the

recent changes in the mix of our various film revenue sources which generally have differing levels

of profitability discussed above in Sources of Revenues indicate that the overall ultimate

profitability for our future films may be lower than that which we have historically achieved

For detailed discussion of our critical accounting policies relating to film and television

special amortization please see Critical Accounting Policies and EstimatesFilmand Television

Costs Amortization
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Product Development Expenses

Product development costs primarily include costs incurred under development agreements with

independent software developers in connection with the development of our online virtual world

games

Selling General and Administrative Expenses

Our selling general and administrative expenses consist primarily of employee compensation

including salaries bonuses stock compensation and employee benefits rent insurance and fees for

professional services

Seasonality

The timing of revenue reporting and receipt of cash remittances to us from our distributor

fluctuate based upon the timing of our films theatrical and home entertainment releases and the

recoupment position of our distributor on film-by-film basis which varies depending upon films

overall performance Furthermore revenues related to our television specials fluctuate based upon

the timing of their broadcast and the licensing of our character and film elements are influenced by

seasonal consumer purchasing behavior and the timing of our animated feature film theatrical

releases and television special broadcasts As result our annual or quarterly operating results for

any period are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for future periods
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Overview of Financial Results

The following table sets forth for the periods presented certain data from our audited

consolidated statements of income This information should be read in conjunction with our audited

Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K

Change Change

2009 2008 2007 2009 vs 2008 2008 vs 2007 2009 vs 2008 2008 vs 2007

in millions except percentages and diluted net income per share data

Revenues $725.2 $650.1 $767.2 11.6% 15.3% 75.1 $117.1

Costs of revenues 433.4 365.5 372.3 18.6% 1.8% 67.9 6.8

Product development 2.7 2.1 28.6% l00.0% 0.6 2.1

Selling general and

administrative expenses 95.8 110.7 103.6 13.5% 6.9% 14.9 7.1

Operating income 193.3 171.8 291.3 12.5% 41.0% 21.5 119.5

Interest income net 2.0 9.3 24.5 78.5% 62.0% 7.3 15.2

Otherincome net 7.2 5.2 5.6 38.5% 7.1% 2.0 0.4

Increase in income tax benefit

payable to former

stockholder 41.8 23.5 93.6 77.9% 74.9% 18.3 70.1

Income before income taxes 160.7 162.8 227.8 1.3% 28.5% 2.1 65.0

Provision for income taxes 9.7 20.3 9.4 52.2% 16.0% 10.6 10.9

Net income $151.0 $142.5 $218.4 6.0% 34.8% 8.5 75.9

Diluted net income per share ... 1.73 1.57 2.17 10.2% 27.6% 0.16 0.60

Diluted shares used in computing

diluted net income
per

share 87.3 91.0 100.5 4J% 9.5%

During the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 we repurchased total of

2.3 million 6.8 million and 10.1 million shares of our Class common stock respectively
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The following table sets forth for the periods presented our revenues by film This information should be

read in conjunction with our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere

in this Form 10-K

$800

$0

For each period shown Current year theatrical releases consists of revenues attributable to films released

during the current year Prior year theatrical releases consists of revenues attributable to films released

during the immediately prior year and All Other consists of revenues attributable to films released during

all previous periods including our library titles as well as revenues from any other sources including

television specials

For the year ended December 31 2009 All Other includes revenue totaling $54.3 million for Shrek the

Third and $36.7 million for Bee Movie and $93.1 million associated with our television specials and Shrek

The Musical For the year ended December 31 2008 All Other includes revenue totaling $35.2 million

for Over the Hedge and $25.3 million for Flushed Away For the year ended December 31 2008 the

revenues associated with our television specials and Shrek The Musical were not material For the year

ended December 31 2007 All Other includes revenue totaling $25.5 million of worldwide licensing

revenue for the 2007 television special Shrek the Halls

Year Ended December 31 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2008

Revenues For the year ended December 31 2009 our revenue was $725.2 million an increase of $75.1

million or 11.6% as compared to $650.1 million for the year ended December 31 2008 As illustrated in the

revenue chart above in Overview of Financial Results the change in revenue between 2009 as compared to

2008 was primarily related to the stronger performance of the prior year theatrical releases particularly that of

$725.2
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Madagascar Escape Africa as compared to Bee Movie Also contributing to the change in

revenues between periods was the larger amount of revenue contributed by our properties comprising

the All Other category The stronger performance of our Prior year theatrical releases and the

All Other categories was offset by the lower revenues contributed by Monsters vs Aliens during

2009 as compared to Kung Fu Panda during 2008 Additionally during the second quarter of

2009 we amended our primary video game distribution agreement and as result we recognized

approximately $24.0 million of deferred revenue related to several previously released titles The

video game distribution agreement was amended among other things to eliminate provision that

allowed certain guaranteed payments for previously released titles to be recouped by the distributor

from future royalties generated by subsequently released titles

Monsters vs Aliens our only theatrical release in 2009 contributed $83.3 million of revenue

earned primarily in the worldwide theatrical and domestic home entertainment markets and to

lesser extent the international home entertainment and ancillary markets which includes

merchandising and licensing during the year ended December 31 2009 Madagascar Escape

Africa our 2008 fourth quarter release contributed $232.4 million of revenue during the year ended

December 31 2009 earned primarily in the worldwide theatrical and home entertainment markets

and to lesser extent in the worldwide television markets Kung Fu Panda reported an additional

$106.1 million earned in the worldwide home entertainment television and ancillary markets

Additionally our revenue for 2009 included $93.1 million associated with our television specials and

Shrek The Musical which had its final performance on Broadway on January 2010 and revenue

contributed by Shrek the Third Bee Movie and our film library
earned across several markets

Several films contributed to our revenue for the year ended December 31 2008 Kung Fu

Panda contributed $211.5 million of revenue associated with its worldwide theatrical and home

entertainment releases and ancillary revenue sources Madagascar Escape Africa which

performed strongly enough in the domestic theatrical market to enable our distributor to report

revenue during the quarter of its theatrical release contributed $24.0 million of revenue which

includes merchandising and licensing revenue Shrek the Third one of 2008s Prior year theatrical

releases contributed $120.0 million earned largely in the worldwide home entertainment television

and ancillary markets and Bee Movie the other film comprising 2008s Prior year theatrical

releases generated total of $111.4 million of revenues primarily attributable to the worldwide

theatrical home entertainment and domestic pay television markets Our other properties which are

principally our library of titles and Over the Hedge and Flushed Away contributed revenues during

2008 totaling $183.2 million earned primarily in the international television and worldwide home

entertainment markets

Costs of Revenues Costs of revenues for the year ended December 31 2009 totaled $433.4

million an increase of $67.9 million compared to $365.5 million for the year ended December 31

2008

Costs of revenues the primary component of which is the amortization of film costs as

percentage of film revenue was 59.8% for the year ended December 31 2009 as compared to 56.2%

for the year ended December 31 2008 While the overall rate of amortization rate of film and
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television special costs as percentage of revenues was fairly consistent between the periods Kung

Fu Panda had lower rate of amortization for the year ended December 31 2008 than that for

Monsters vs Aliens during the comparable period of 2009 due to Kung Fu Pandas stronger

performance This difference in amortization rate for the Current year theatrical release category

between 2009 and 2008 was partially offset by the combined lower rate of amortization for the Prior

year theatrical releases category during the year ended December 31 2009 as compared to the year

ended December 31 2008 largely due to the stronger performance of Madagascar Escape Africa

as compared to Bee Movie Furthermore Monsters vs Aliens and Bee Movie have such high rates of

film amortization that they are significantly less profitable than the other films generating income

during these periods In addition costs of revenues for the year ended December 31 2009 was

impacted by the direct operating and marketing costs associated with Shrek The Musical on

Broadway and to lesser extent certain of our television specials

Product development Product development costs totaled $2.7 million and $2.1 million for the

years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively and represent development costs incurred in

connection with the development of our online virtual worlds and technological development costs

associated with other recent strategic initiatives

Selling General and Administrative Expenses Total selling general and administrative

expenses decreased $14.9 million to $95.8 million including $28.2 million of stock compensation

expense for the year ended December 31 2009 from $110.7 million including $36.4 million of

stock compensation expense for the year ended December 31 2008 This 13.5% aggregate decrease

spans across several selling general and administrative categories including an $8.2 million decrease

in stock compensation primarily due to the absence of expense associated with certain senior

executive performance awards during the first quarter of 2009 and to lesser extent the impact of

the revision to the terms of certain equity grants during the third quarter of 2008 $1.3 million of

lower company-wide incentive compensation approximately $3.6 million of lower corporate travel

expenses and lower selling general and administrative expenses across several categories none of

which were individually material

Operating Income Operating income for the year ended December 31 2009 was $193.3

million compared to $171.8 million for the year ended December 31 2008 The increase of $21.5

million in operating income for the year ended December 31 2009 was largely because of the

stronger performance during 2009 of Madagascar Escape Africa as compared to that of Bee Movie

during 2008 as mitigated by the impact of the stronger performance of Kung Fu Panda during 2008

as compared to that of Monsters vs Aliens during 2009 Operating income for the year ended

December 31 2009 was also positively affected by the recognition of deferred revenue related to

several previously released titles in conjunction with the second quarter 2009 amendment to our

video game distribution agreement and by lower selling general and administrative expenses period-

over-period

Interest Income Net For the year ended December 31 2009 total interest income was $2.0

million decrease of $7.3 million or 78.5% from $9.3 million for the same period of 2008 The

decrease in interest income was due to lower rates of interest earned on investments during 2009 as

compared to 2008 and to lesser extent lower average balances of cash and cash equivalents largely

due to the stock repurchases made throughout 2008 and continuing in the first quarter of 2009 and

the repayment of the financing associated with our headquarters in the fourth quarter of 2009
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Interest expense capitalized to production film costs was $1.1 million and $3.0 million for the

years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The $1.9 million decrease between the

periods was primarily due to the decrease in amount of overall interest expense eligible for

capitalization during 2009 because of lower interest rates in 2009 associated with our various

financing arrangements See Financing Arrangements below for discussion of our various

financing arrangements

Other Income Net For the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 total other income was

$7.2 million and $5.2 million respectively Other income in both years consisted mainly of income

recognized in connection with preferred vendor arrangements

Increase in Income Tax Benefit Payable to Former Stockholder As result of partial

increase in the tax basis of our tangible and intangible assets attributable to transactions entered into

by affiliates controlled by former stockholder at the time of our separation from Old DreamWorks

Studios Tax Basis Increase we may pay reduced tax amounts to the extent we generate

sufficient taxable income in the future As discussed below in Critical Accounting Policies and

EstimatesProvision for Income Taxes we are obligated to remit to the affiliate of the former

stockholder 85% of any such cash savings in U.S Federal income tax and California franchise tax

and certain other related tax benefits subject to repayment if it is determined that these savings

should not have been available to us

For the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 we recorded $49.2 million and $27.6 million

respectively in net tax benefits associated with the Tax Basis Increase as reduction in the provision

for income taxes and recorded an increase in income tax benefit payable to former stockholder of

$41.8 million and $23.5 million respectively representing 85% of these recognized benefits

Provision for Income Taxes For the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 we recorded

provision for income taxes of $9.7 million and $20.3 million respectively or an effective tax rate of

4.8% and 10.9% respectively However when our provision for income taxes is combined with the

amounts associated with the Increase in Income Tax Benefit Payable to Shareholder see above the

combined effective percentages for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 are 25.4% and

23.5% respectively Our effective tax rate and our combined effective tax rate for both periods was

lower than the 35% statutory federal rate primarily because of the decrease in our valuation

allowance for deferred tax assets largely resulting from the increase in the net tax benefits recognized

from the Tax Basis Increase as described above

Net Income Net income for the year ended December 31 2009 was $151.0 million or $1.73

per diluted share as compared to net income of $142.5 million or $1.57 net income per diluted

share for the year ended December 31 2008

Year Ended December 31 2008 Compared to Year Ended December 31 2007

Revenues For the year ended December 31 2008 our revenue was $650.1 million decrease

of $117.1 million or 15.3% as compared to $767.2 million for the year ended December 31 2007

As illustrated in the revenue chart included above in Overview of Financial Results the change in

revenue for the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to 2007 is primarily function of the
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lower revenues contributed by the films comprising our 2008s Current year theatrical releases and

All Other categories being somewhat offset by the stronger performance of our 2008s Prior year

theatrical releases category Kung Fu Panda while performing strong enough to contribute more

than one-third of our total revenue for the year ended December 31 2008 contributed less revenue in

2008 than the higher-grossing Shrek the Third which contributed almost 50% of 2007s total

revenues Nevertheless the stronger performance of our 2008 Prior year theatrical releases Shrek

the Third and Bee Movie as compared to 2007s Prior year theatrical releases Over the Hedge and

Flushed Away significantly offset the decline in revenue for the Current year theatrical releases

and All Other categories

Several films contributed to our revenue for the year ended December 31 2008 Kung Fu

Panda contributed $211.5 million of revenue associated with its worldwide theatrical and home

entertainment releases and ancillary revenue sources Madagascar Escape Africa which

performed strongly enough in the domestic theatrical market to enable our distributor to report

revenue during the same quarter as its respective theatrical release contributed $24.0 million of

revenue which includes merchandising and licensing revenue Shrek the Third one of 2008s Prior

year theatrical releases contributed $120.0 million earned largely in the worldwide home

entertainment television and ancillary markets and Bee Movie the other film comprising 2008s

Prior year theatrical releases generated total of $111.4 million of revenues primarily attributable

to the worldwide theatrical home entertainment markets and the domestic pay television markets

Our other properties which are principally our library of titles and Over the Hedge and Flushed

Away contributed revenues during 2008 totaling $183.2 million earned primarily in the international

television and worldwide home entertainment markets

For the year ended December 31 2007 Shrek the Third the years single greatest source of

revenue contributed $380.6 million of revenues earned primarily in the worldwide theatrical home

entertainment and ancillary markets Bee Movie 2007s fourth quarter theatrical release contributed

$11.7 million of ancillary revenue Our distributor did not report any revenue to us in 2007 for Bee

Movie as it had not yet recovered the distribution and marketing costs associated with this film as of

December 31 2007 Over the Hedge contributed $91.2 million of revenues earned largely in the

worldwide home entertainment and pay television markets and Flushed Away contributed an

additional $38.9 million of revenues earned across variety of worldwide markets Our other

properties including the television special Shrek the Halls and our library of titles contributed

revenues totaling $244.8 million generated primarily in the worldwide television and home

entertainment markets In addition during the second quarter of 2007 the transition of our home

entertainment fulfillment services from Universal Studios Inc Universal Studios to Paramount

was substantially completed As result the net revenue reported to us by our distributor for the

quarter ended June 30 2007 increased by $25.5 million as result of reduction of certain

previously recorded estimates of home entertainment product returns and marketing costs This

change in estimate partially contributed to the change in Ultimate Revenues which is discussed

below in Costs of Revenues

Costs of Revenues Costs of revenues for the year ended December 31 2008 totaled $365.5

million decrease of $6.8 million compared to $372.3 million for the year ended December 31
2007
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Costs of revenues as percentage of film revenue the primary component of which is film

amortization costs was 56.2% for the year ended December 31 2008 and 48.5% for the year ended

December 31 2007 The increase in amortization of film costs in 2008 from that of 2007 is largely

due to the change in the mix of films earning revenue The combined amortization rate for 2008s

Current year theatrical releases is higher than that for 2007s Current year theatrical releases

primarily because Shrek the Third 2007s second quarter theatrical release and largest single source

of revenue was more successful than Kung Fu Panda 2008s second quarter theatrical release and

largest single source of revenue and consequently it has higher projection of Ultimate Revenues

Additionally Bee Movie which contributed almost 50% of 2008s Prior year theatrical releases

total revenues has high rate of amortization as compared to Over the Hedge which contributed

substantial portion of revenue for this category in 2007 These higher rates of amortization in 2008

were slightly offset by the combined lower rate of amortization for the All Other category during

the year ended December 31 2008 as compared to the year ended December 31 2007 In addition

although to lesser extent cost of revenues for 2008 was impacted by the marketing and advertising

costs associated with the debut of Shrek The Musical on Broadway and 2007 film amortization was

impacted by an increase in estimated Ultimate Revenues for several of our titles

Product Development Product development costs totaled $2.1 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 and primarily represent development costs incurred in connection with an online

virtual world There were no product development costs during the year ended December 31 2007

Selling General and Administrative Expenses Total selling general and administrative

expenses increased by $7.1 million to $110.7 million including $36.4 million of stock compensation

expense for the year ended December 31 2008 from $103.6 million including stock compensation

expense of $34.0 millionfor the year ended December 31 2007 The $7.1 million increase in

selling general and administrative expenses spans several categories including approximately $2.4

million of higher stock compensation expense generally due to the continued growth in the number

of grants made to the overall employee base approximately $3.1 million of increased corporate

travel costs related to new business developments and $2.4 million of higher facilities costs related

to the expansion of our Company headquarters

Operating Income Operating income for the year ended December 31 2008 was $171.8

million decrease of $119.5 million or 41.0% compared to that of $291.3 million for the year

ended December 31 2007 The decrease in operating income for the year ended December 31 2008

was largely as result of the combined impact of the performance of our 2008 second quarter

theatrical release Kung Fu Panda as compared to the superior performance of Shrek the Third

during the comparable period of 2007 and the additional revenue reported by our distributor in the

second quarter of 2007 as result of the completion of the transition of home entertainment

fulfillment services from our prior distributor This combined impact was partially offset by the

stronger performance of the Prior year theatrical releases category during the year ended

December 31 2008 as compared to the comparable period of 2007 Additionally product

development costs and higher selling general and administrative costs contributed to the decrease in

operating income

Interest Income Net For the year ended December 31 2008 total net interest income was

$9.3 million decrease of $15.2 million or 62.0% from $24.5 million for the same period of 2007
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The decrease in net interest income for 2008 as compared to 2007 was due to combination of lower

average rates of interest earned on cash and cash equivalents and lower average balances of cash and

cash equivalents largely due to the stock repurchases made throughout 2007 and continuing in 2008

Interest expense capitalized to production film costs was $3.0 million and $8.6 million for the

years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively The $5.6 million decrease between the

periods was primarily due to the decrease in amount of interest expense eligible for capitalization

during 2008 because of the repayment of debt in 2007 and lower interest rates in 2008 associated

with our various financing arrangements See Financing Arrangements below for discussion of

our various financing arrangements

Other Income Net For the year ended December 31 2008 and 2007 total other income was

$5.2 million and $5.6 million respectively Other income in both years consisted entirely of income

recognized in connection with preferred vendor arrangements

Increase in Income Tax Benefit Payable to Former Stockholder As result of the Tax Basis

Increase we are obligated to remit to the stockholders affiliate 85% of any such cash savings in U.S

Federal income tax and California franchise tax and certain other related tax benefits subject to

repayment if it is determined that these savings should not have been available to us

For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 we recorded $27.6 million and $110.2

million respectively in net tax benefits associated with the Tax Basis Increase as reduction in the

provision for income taxes and recorded an expense of $23.5 million and $93.6 million respectively

representing 85% of these recognized benefits to increase income tax benefit payable to former

stockholder

Provision for Income Taxes For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 we recorded

provision for income taxes of $20.3 million and $9.4 million respectively or an effective tax rate of

10.9% and 3.0% respectively However when our provision for income taxes is combined with the

amounts associated with the Increase in Income Tax Benefit Payable to Shareholder see above the

combined effective percentages for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 are 23.5% and

32.1% respectively Our 2008 and 2007 effective tax rates were significantly lower than the 35%

statutory federal rate primarily because of $33.5 million and $110.9 million respectively decrease

to our valuation allowance primarily related to the ability to carryback certain deferred tax

deductions to taxable income

Net Income Net income for the year ended December 31 2008 was $142.5 million or $1.57

per diluted share as compared to $218.4 million or $2.17 per diluted share for the year ended

December 31 2007
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Financing Arrangements

The following table summarizes the balances outstanding and other information associated with

our various financing arrangements in thousands

Interest Cost

Balance Outstanding Rtf For the Year Ended

at December 31 December31
December 31

2009 2008 Maturity Date 2009 2009 2008 2007

Animation Campus

Financing N/A $73000 October 2009 N/A $1090 $3069 $4765

Revolving Credit

Facility2 June 2013 0.375% 488 254 N/A

N/A Not Applicable

In accordance with the terms of the financing arrangement the entire amount of the obligation

$73.0 million was repaid upon maturity in October 2009 The financing bore interest primarily

at 30-day commercial paper rates and was fully collateralized by the underlying real property

The special-purpose entity associated with this financing was consolidated by the Company as

of December 31 2003 and as such the balance of the obligation has historically been presented

on the consolidated balance sheets as $70.1 million of bank borrowings and other debt and

$2.9 million minority interest

On June 24 2008 we entered into revolving credit facility with several banks pursuant to

which we are permitted to borrow up to $125.0 million We are required to pay commitment

fee of 0.375% on undrawn amounts Interest on borrowed amounts is determined by reference to

either the lending banks base rate plus 0.50% per annum or to LIBOR plus 1.5% per annum As

of December 31 2009 there were no borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility In

addition in connection with entering into the Revolving Credit Facility we terminated our prior

$100 million revolving credit facility Prior Credit Facility We did not incur any material

termination penalties in connection with this termination There was no debt outstanding under

the Prior Credit Facility for any period during 2008 prior to its termination Under the Prior

Credit Facility we were required to pay commitment fee of 0.75% on undrawn amounts

For more detailed description of our various financing arrangements please see Note to the

audited consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this Annual Report

As of December 31 2009 we were in compliance with all applicable financial debt covenants

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Current Financial Condition

Our primary operating capital needs are to fund the production and development costs of our

films and new lines of business including television specials and stage musicals make participation

and residual payments fund selling general and administrative costs and capital expenditures Our

operating activities for the year ended December 31 2009 generated adequate cash to meet our

operating needs For the next 12 months we expect that cash on hand and cash generated from

operations will be sufficient to satisfy our anticipated cash needs for working capital stock
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repurchases and capital expenditures In the event that these cash flows are insufficient we expect to

be able to draw funds from our revolving credit facility to meet these needs For 2010 we expect our

commitments to fund production and development costs excluding capitalized interest and overhead

expense make contingent compensation and residual payments on films released to date fund

capital expenditures and pay employee bonuses will be approximately $467.5 million Additionally

over the next few quarters we expect to spend approximately $7.5 million as we enter the final

phases of our effort begun in early 2008 to expand and make general improvements to our Company

headquarters located in Glendale California in order to accommodate general business growth

including 3D expansion

As of December 31 2009 we had cash and cash equivalents totaling $231.2 million Our cash

and cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit and short-term money market investments

principally commercial paper and commercial paper mutual funds that are rated AAA and with

maturities of three months or less when purchased Our cash and cash equivalents balance at

December 31 2009 decreased by $31.4 million from that of $262.6 million at December 31 2008

Components of this change in cash for the year ended December 31 2009 as well as for change in

cash for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 are provided below in more detail

Net cash provided by operating activities for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007 is as follows in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Net cash provided by operating activities $173511 $207550 $150538

Net cash provided by operating activities for 2009 was primarily attributable to the collection of

revenue from Madagascar Escape Africas worldwide theatrical and home entertainment release

Kung Fit Pandas worldwide home entertainment release and to lesser extent the collection of

Monsters vs Aliens worldwide theatrical revenues and worldwide home entertainment and television

revenues for our other films including Shrek the Third Bee Movie Madagascar and Over the Hedge

In addition at December 31 2009 our non-Paramount trade accounts receivable increased

significantly
from that at December 31 2008 largely because of revenue primarily associated with

merchandising and promotion activities which was largely collected in early 2010 The operating

cash provided by the collection of revenues during 2009 was offset by $28.5 million paid net of

refunds to an affiliate of former significant stockholder related to tax benefits realized in 2008

from the Tax Basis Increase and $37.6 million paid related to annual incentive compensation

payments Additionally in 2009 we received income tax refunds totaling $7.7 million The operating

cash provided by revenues was also partially offset by film production spending and participation and

residual payments

Net cash provided by operating activities for 2008 was primarily attributable to the collection of

revenue associated with Kung Fu Pandas and Bee Movies worldwide theatrical releases Shrek the

Thirds worldwide home entertainment release and international television revenues worldwide

television revenue for Madagascar and to lesser extent the collection of worldwide television and

home entertainment revenues for our other films including Over the Hedge Shrek and Shrek The

operating cash provided by the collection of revenues during 2008 was offset by $37.6 million paid

to an affiliate of former stockholder related to tax benefits realized in 2007 from the Tax Basis
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Increase $37.3 million paid net of refunds for estimated federal and state income taxes and $44.4

million paid related to 2007 employee bonus plans The operating cash provided by revenues was

also partially offset by film production and development spending and participation and residual

payments

Net cash provided by operating activities for 2007 was primarily attributable to the collection of

revenue attributable to Shrek the Thirds worldwide theatrical release and Over the Hedges

worldwide home entertainment sales and to lesser extent the collection of worldwide theatrical

television and home entertainment revenues for our other films including Flushed Away

Madagascar Shark Tale and Shrek The operating cash provided during 2007 was offset by $27.6

million paid to an affiliate of former stockholder who was stockholder in 2007 related to tax

benefits realized in 2006 from the Tax Basis Increase $31.6 million paid for estimated federal and

state income taxes and $89.4 million paid to our distributor for distribution costs not deducted from

remittances in prior years In addition cash provided by operating activities for 2007 was partially

offset by film production spending and participation and residual payments including participation

payments associated with Shrek the Third

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 is

as follows in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Net cash used in investing activities $74394 $49049 $12290

Net cash used in investing activities for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 primarily

related to the investment in property and equipment Net cash used in investing activities for 2007

resulted primarily from the investment in equipment and the purchase of fractional ownership

interest in corporate aircraft

The increase in the investment in property plant and equipment over the years since 2007 is

largely related to the expansion of our headquarters and new strategic technology initiatives and

alliances

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 is

as follows in thousands

2009 2008 2007

Net cash used in financing activities $130516 $188346 $352063

Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31 2009 principally included

the $73.0 million repayment of financing associated with our headquarters made in October 2009 and

repurchases of our Class common stock For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 net

cash used in financing activities was primarily comprised of repurchases of our Class common

stock and for the year ended December 31 2007 also included the $50.0 million repayment of

subordinated debt to HBO made in November 2007
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Contractual Obligations

Contractual Obligations As of December 31 2009 we had contractual commitments to make

the following payments in thousands and on an undiscounted basis

Payments Due by Year

Contractual Cash Obligations 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereafter Total

Operating leases 7257 $6159 $3575 $16991

Other 8123 712 672 426 439 37 10409

Total contractual cash

obligations $15380 $6871 $4247 $426 $439 37 $27400

Other commitments are principally comprised of the remaining contractual commitment related

to the expansion of our headquarters

As of December 31 2009 we had non-cancelable talent commitments totaling approximately

$30.8 million that are payable over the next five years

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are outlined in Note to the audited consolidated financial

statements contained elsewhere in this Form 10-K We prepare our consolidated financial statements

in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles GAAP In doing so

we have to make estimates and assumptions that affect our reported amounts of assets liabilities

revenues and expenses as well as related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities including

estimates of ultimate revenues and costs of film and television product estimates of product sales

that will be returned the potential outcome of future tax consequences of events that have been

recognized in our financial statements and estimates used in the determination of the fair value of

stock options and other equity awards for the determination of stock-based compensation In some

cases changes in the accounting estimates are reasonably likely to occur from period to period

Accordingly actual results could differ materially from our estimates To the extent that there are

material differences between these estimates and actual results our financial condition or results of

operations will be affected We base our estimates on past experience and other assumptions that we

believe are reasonable under the circumstances and we evaluate these estimates on an ongoing basis

We believe that the application of the following accounting policies which are important to our

financial position and results of operations requires significant judgments and estimates on the part

of management

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from the distribution of our animated feature films when earned and

reported to us by our distributor Pursuant to our distribution and servicing arrangements we

recognize our feature film revenue net of reserves for returns rebates and other incentives after our

distributor has retained distribution fee of 8.0% of revenue without deduction for any

distribution and marketing costs or third-party distribution and fulfillment services fees and

ii recovered all of its distribution and marketing costs with respect to our films on title-by-title
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basis Prior to January 2009 Paramount reported our international theatrical results on 30-day

lag This 30-day lag was eliminated effective January 2009 This change in reporting did not have

material impact on our consolidated financial statements International home entertainment results

continue to be reported on 30-day lag Because third party is the principal distributor of our films

the amount of revenue that we recognize from our films in any given period is dependent on the

timing accuracy and sufficiency of the information we receive from our distributor As typical in the

film industry our distributor may make adjustments in future periods to information previously

provided to us that could have material impact on our operating results in later periods

Furthermore management may in its judgment make material adjustments to the information

reported by our distributor in future periods to ensure that revenues are accurately reflected in our

financial statements To date our distributor has not made subsequent nor has management made

material adjustments to information provided by our distributor and used in the preparation of our

historical financial statements

Revenue from the theatrical exhibition of films is recognized at the later of when film is

exhibited in theaters or when revenue is reported by our distributor

Revenue from the sale of our feature film home video units is recognized at the later of when

product is made available for retail sale and when video sales to customers are reported to us by third

parties such as fulfillment service providers or distributors In addition we and our distributor

provide for future returns of home video product and for customer programs and sales incentives We
and our distributor calculate these estimates by analyzing combination of historical returns current

economic trends projections of consumer demand for our product and point-of-sale data available

from certain retailers Based on this information percentage of each sale is reserved and in the case

of product returns provided that the customer has the right of return Customers are typically given

varying rights of return from 15% up to 100% However although we and our distributor allow

various rights of return for our customers we do not believe that these rights are critical in

establishing return estimates because other factors such as our historical experience with similar

types of sales information we receive from retailers and our assessment of the products appeal

based on domestic box office success and other research are more important to the estimation

process

Revenue from both free and pay television licensing agreements is recognized at the later of the

time the production is made available for exhibition in those markets or it is reported to us by our

distributor

Revenue from licensing and merchandising is recognized when the associated feature film or

television special has been released and the criteria for revenue recognition have been met Licensing

and merchandising related minimum guarantees are generally recognized as revenue upon the

theatrical release of film and royalty-based revenues revenues based upon percentage of net sales

of the products are generally recognized as revenue in periods when royalties are reported by

licensees or cash is received

Film Costs Amortization

Capitalized film and television special production costs contingent compensation and residuals

are amortized and included in costs of revenues in the proportion that titles revenue during the
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period Current Revenue bears to its estimated remaining total revenue to be received from all

sources Ultimate Revenue as of the beginning of the current fiscal period under the individual-

film-forecast-computation method The amount of capitalized production costs that is amortized each

period will therefore depend on the ratio of Current Revenue to Ultimate Revenue for each film or

television special for such period We make certain estimates and judgments of Ultimate Revenue to

be received for each film or television special based on information received from our distributor and

our knowledge of the industry Ultimate Revenue includes estimates of revenue that will be earned

over period not to exceed 10 years from the date of initial release Historically there has been

close correlation between the success of film in the domestic box office market and the films

success in the international theatrical and worldwide home entertainment markets In general films

that achieve domestic box office success also tend to experience success in the home entertainment

and international theatrical markets While we continue to believe that domestic box office

performance is key indicator of films potential performance in these subsequent markets we do

not believe that it is the only factor influencing the films success in these markets and recognize that

range of other market and film-specific factors can have significant impact

Estimates of Ultimate Revenue and anticipated participation and residual costs are reviewed

periodically and are revised if necessary change in any given period to the Ultimate Revenue for

an individual title will result in an increase or decrease to the percentage of amortization of

capitalized production costs relative to previous period An increase in estimate of Ultimate

Revenues will lower the percentage rate of amortization while conversely decrease in the estimate

of Ultimate Revenue will raise the percentage rate of amortization In addition we evaluate

capitalized production costs for impairment each reporting period on title-by-title basis If

estimated remaining revenue is not sufficient to recover the unamortized capitalized production costs

for that title the unamortized capitalized production costs will be written down to fair value

determined using net present value calculation The cost of any such write downs are reflected in

costs of revenues

Stock-Based Compensation

We record employee stock-based compensation by measuring the cost of employee services

received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the

award As of December 31 2009 the total compensation cost related to unvested equity awards

granted to employees excluding equity awards with performance objectives deemed not probable of

achievement but not yet recognized was approximately $96.2 million This cost will be amortized on

straight-line basis over weighted average life of 1.8 years

The fair value of stock option grants with either service-based or performance-based vesting

criteria is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model Some of the

primary input assumptions of the Black-Scholes option-pricing model are volatility dividend yield

the weighted average expected option term and the risk-free interest rate We apply the simplified

method of calculating the weighted average expected term The simplified method defines the

weighted average expected term as being the average of the weighted average of the vesting period

and contractual term of each stock option granted Given our lack of sufficient historical exercise

data for stock option grants we continue to expect to use the simplified method for calculating the

expected term Once sufficient information regarding exercise behavior such as historical exercise
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data or exercise information from external sources becomes available we will be required to utilize

another method to determine the weighted average expected term In addition the estimated volatility

incorporates both historical volatility and the implied volatility of publicly traded options

Additionally management makes an estimate of expected forfeitures and is recognizing

compensation costs only for those equity awards expected to vest

For equity awards of stock options to purchase and restricted shares of our common stock that

contain certain performance-based measures compensation costs are adjusted to reflect the estimated

probability of vesting For equity awards of stock appreciation rights to purchase and restricted

shares of our common stock which contain market-based condition such as vesting based upon

stock-price appreciation we use Monte-Carlo simulation option-pricing model to determine the

awards grant-date fair value The Monte-Carlo simulation option-pricing model takes into account

the same input assumptions as the Black-Scholes model as outlined above however it also further

incorporates into the fair-value determination the possibility that the market condition may not be

satisfied and impact of the possible differing stock price paths Compensation costs related to awards

with market-based condition will be recognized regardless of whether the market condition is

satisfied provided that the requisite service has been provided

Estimates of the fair value of stock options are not intended to predict actual future events or the

value ultimately realized by employees who receive stock option awards and subsequent events are

not indicative of the reasonableness of the original estimates of fair value made by us Changes to our

underlying stock price or satisfaction of performance criteria for performance-based awards granted

to employees could significantly affect compensation expense to be recognized in future periods

Provision for Income Taxes

We account for income taxes pursuant to the asset and liability method and accordingly

deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to

differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and

their respective tax basis and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in

which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax

assets and liabilities of change in tax rates or change in tax status is recognized in income in the

period that includes the enactment date We record valuation allowance to reduce our deferred

income tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized In evaluating our ability to

recover our deferred income tax assets management considers all available positive and negative

evidence including our operating results ongoing prudent and feasible tax-planning strategies and

forecasts of future taxable income

At the time of our separation from Old DreamWorks Studios affiliates controlled by former

significant stockholder entered into series of transactions that resulted in partial increase in the tax

basis of the Companys tangible and intangible assets previously defined above as the Tax Basis

Increase The Tax Basis increase was $1.61 billion resulting in potential tax benefit to us of

approximately $595.0 million that is expected to be realized over 15 years if we generate sufficient

taxable income The Tax Basis Increase is expected to reduce the amount of tax that we may pay in

the future to the extent we generate taxable income in sufficient amounts in the future We are
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obligated to remit to the affiliate of our former significant stockholder 85% of any such cash savings

in U.S Federal income tax and California franchise tax and certain other related tax benefits subject

to repayment if it is determined that these savings should not have been available to us

Additionally we use single comprehensive model to address uncertainty in tax positions and

apply minimum recognition threshold and measurement attribute for tax positions taken or

expected to be taken in tax return in order to be recognized in the financial statements We continue

to follow the practice of recognizing interest and penalties related to income tax matters as part of the

provision for income taxes

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For discussion of recent accounting pronouncements please see Note to the audited

consolidated financial statements contained elsewhere in this Form 10-K
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market and Exchange Rate Risk

Interest Rate Risk While we continue actively to monitor fluctuations in interest rates we

currently have minimal exposure to interest rate risk on our financing arrangements as we have no

outstanding borrowings on our revolving credit facility

Foreign Currency Risk We are subject to foreign currency rate fluctuations because major

portion of our business including Paramounts distribution of our films is derived from foreign

countries where significant amount of the transactions are conducted in local currencies

Historically because our filmshave generally been profitable internationally we have benefited from

weaker U.S dollar and have been adversely affected by stronger U.S dollar relative to any

foreign currency

While the information provided to us by our distributor does not enable us to isolate or precisely

quantify the impact of any foreign currencys rate fluctuation on our earnings our distributor does

provide sufficient information to enable us to identify those foreign currencies to which we are

primarily exposed and to make general estimate of the impact of percentage change in these

foreign currencies on our reported earnings During 2009 our most significant foreign currency

exposures were with respect to the Euro and the British pound We estimate that hypothetical 10%

change in the foreign currency exchange rate between the U.S Dollar and Euro and the U.S Dollar

and the British pound would have impacted our 2009 earnings by approximately $4.1 million and

$2.6 million respectively

We do not currently engage in foreign currency hedging activities to limit the risk of exchange

rate fluctuations on our reported earnings because we are not able to forecast within an acceptable

level of risk our exposure to foreign currencies In addition our films foreign currency transactions

contain to some degree natural foreign currency hedge for receipts because certain significant

offsetting distribution expenses are denominated in the same local currency

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Index to Financial Statements and Supplemental Data is on page F-i following the

signature pages

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of December 31 2009 our management carried out an evaluation under the supervision and

with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the effectiveness of

the design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and procedures as such term is

66



defined under Exchange Act Rule 3a- 15e Based on this evaluation the chief executive officer and

the chief financial officer have concluded that as of December 31 2009 such disclosure controls and

procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that we record process summarize and

report the information we must disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended within the time periods specified in the SEC rules and forms

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over

financial reporting Under the supervision and with the participation
of management including the

chief executive officer and chief financial officer management assessed the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on the framework in Internal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission Based on that assessment management has concluded that our internal

control over financial reporting was effective at December 31 2009 to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of our financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles Due to

its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements In addition projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject

to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Ernst Young LLP our independent registered public accounting firm has audited our

financial statements included in this Form 10-K and has issued its report on the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 which is included herein

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

period covered by this Annual Report that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to

materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

In addition to the information set forth under the caption Executive Officers of the Registrant

in Part of this Form 10-K the information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from

our Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for

the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for

the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for

the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from our Proxy Statement for

the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

a1 Financial Statements

See index on Page F-i

a2 Financial Statement Schedules

See index on Page F-i

a3 and Exhibits

The Exhibits listed in the Index to Exhibits except for Exhibit 32.1 which is furnished with this

Form 10-K which appears immediately following the signature page and is incorporated herein by

reference are filed as part of this Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this

report has been signed on behalf of the registrant by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized on

this 23rd day of February 2010

DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

By Is LEWIS CoLEMAN

Lewis Coleman

President and Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS

That the undersigned officers and directors of DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc do hereby

constitute and appoint Jeffrey Katzenberg and Andrew Chang and each of them the lawful attorney

and agent or attorneys and agents with power and authority to do any and all acts and things and to

execute any and all instruments which said attorneys and agents or either of them determine may be

necessary or advisable or required to enable DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc to comply with the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and any rules or regulations or requirements of the

Securities and Exchange Commission in connection with this annual report on Form 10-K Without

limiting the generality of the foregoing power and authority the powers granted include the power

and authority to sign the names of the undersigned officers and directors in the capacities
indicated

below to this annual report on Form 10-K or amendment or supplements thereto and each of the

undersigned hereby ratifies and confirms all that said attorneys and agent or either of them shall do

or cause to be done by virtue hereof This Power of Attorney may be signed in several counterparts

IN WITNESS WHEREOF each of the undersigned has executed this Power of Attorney as of

the date indicated opposite his or her name

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated

Signature
Title Date

______________________________
Chief Executive Officer and February 23 2010

Director Principal Executive

Officer

______________________________
President Chief Financial February 23 2010

Officer and Director

Principal Financial Officer

Is JEFFREY KATZENBERG

Jeffrey Katzenberg

Is LEwIs COLEMAN

Lewis Coleman
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Signature
Title Date

Is PHILIP CROSS Chief Accounting Officer February 23 2010

Philip Cross Principal Accounting Officer

Is ROGER ENRICO Chairman of the Board of February 23 2010

Roger Enrico Directors

IsI HARRY BRITFENHAM Director February 23 2010

Harry Brittenham

/s THOMAS FRESTON Director February 23 2010

Thomas Freston

/s JUDSON GREEN Director February 23 2010

Judson Green

/s/ MELLODY HOBSON Director February 23 2010

Mellody Hobson

Is MICHAEL MONTGOMERY Director February 23 2010

Michael Montgomery

/5/ NATHAN MYHRVOLD Director February 23 2010

Nathan Myhrvold

Is RICHARD SHERMAN Director February 23 2010

Richard Sherman
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Stockholders and Board of Directors of DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of DreamWorks Animation

SKG Inc the Company as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated

statements of income stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period

ended December 31 2009 These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement

An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation

We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated financial position of DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc at December 31 2009 and

2008 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in

the period ended December 31 2009 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc.s internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and

our report dated February 23 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is/ ERNST YOUNG LLP

Los Angeles California

February 23 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Stockholders and Board of Directors of DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc

We have audited DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc.s internal control over financial reporting

as of December 31 2009 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO

criteria DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc.s management is responsible for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control

over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control

Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was

maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control

over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such

other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides

reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are

being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the

financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc maintained in all material respects effective

internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2009 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheets of DreamWorks Animation SKG
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Inc as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related consolidated statements of income

stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31
2009 and our report dated February 23 2010 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is ERNST YOUNG LLP

Los Angeles California

February 23 2010
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2009 2008

in thousands

except par value and

share amounts
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 231245 262644
Trade accounts receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts 42175 4550
Income taxes receivable 9016 6468
Receivable from Paramount net of reserve for returns and allowance for

doubtful accounts 171292 186522

Filmcosts net 695963 638243

Prepaid expenses and other assets 41463 31453

Property plant and equipment net of accumulated depreciation and

amortization 161558 114913

Deferred taxes net 7669 27049
Goodwill 34216 34216

Total assets $1394597 $1306058

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity
Liabilities

Accounts payable 2400 7499
Accrued liabilities 111281 115158

Payable to former stockholder 67456 54192
Deferred revenue and other advances 60870 38857

Borrowings and other debt 70059

Total liabilities 242007 285765
Commitments and contingencies

Equity
Stockholders equity

Class common stock par value $.01 per share 350000000
shares authorized 95967515 and 95381143 shares issued as

of December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively 960 954

Class common stock par value $.01 per share 150000000
shares authorized 11419461 and shares issued and

outstanding as of December 31 2009 and 2008 114 114

Additional paid-in capital 922681 876651

Retained earnings 796296 645261

Less Class Treasury common stock at cost 20430031 and

17432728 shares as of December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively 567461 505628

Total stockholders equity 1152590 1017352

Minority interest 2941

Total equity 1152590 1020293

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $1394597 $1306058

See accompanying notes
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DREAMWORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

except per
share amounts

Revenues $725179 $650052 $767178

Costs of revenues 433367 365485 372295

Gross profit
291812 284567 394883

Product development 2745 2050

Selling general and administrative expenses 95771 110690 103569

Operating income 193296 171827 291314

Interest income net 1953 9305 24523

Other income net 7196 5171 5565

Increase in income tax benefit payable to former stockholder ... 41760 23465 93653

Income before income taxes 160685 162838 227749

Provision for income taxes 9650 20340 9385

Net income $151035 $142498 $218364

Basic net income per share
1.75 1.59 2.18

Diluted net income per share
1.73 1.57 2.17

Shares used in computing net income per share

Basic 86385 89880 100083

Diluted 87301 90976 100469

See accompanying notes
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

349273

30191

3132

37625
15230

380339
11114
8617
13264

1718
104612

173511

74394

74394

4676

359

61833
73000

130516

31399
262644

231245

324691

37600

3461

1080
86125

405206
16516

9891

14179
38949
99768

207550

49049

49049

1479
357

922
189260

188346

29845
292489

262644

351600

34037

4888

94010
40930

2261
116917
399456

8325
52504

66098

17849

67097

150538

10327
1963

12290

1630
870

304563

50000

352063

213815
506304

292489

See accompanying notes

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

in thousands

151035 142498 218364

73193 75201
19380 21615

Operating activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities

Amortization and write off of film costs

Stock compensation expense

Depreciation and amortization

Revenue earned against deferred revenue and other

advances

Deferred taxes net

Change in operating assets and liabilities

Trade accounts receivable

Receivable from Paramount

Film costs

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Payable to former stockholder

Income taxes payable/receivable net

Deferred revenue and other advances

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of property plant and equipment

Purchase of other intangible assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities

Receipts from exercise of stock options

Excess tax benefits from employee equity awards

Deferred debt issuance costs

Purchase of treasury stock

Repayment of campus financing

Repayment of HBO debt

Net cash used in financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid refunded during the year for income

taxes net

Cash paid during the year for interest net of amounts

capitalized

7652 37318

729 869

31598

123
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Description of Business

The businesses and activities of the DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc DreamWorks

Animation or the Company primarily include the development production and exploitation of

animated films and characters in the worldwide theatrical home entertainment television

merchandising and licensing and other markets The Companys films are distributed in theatrical

home entertainment and television markets on worldwide basis by Paramount Pictures Corporation

subsidiary of Viacom Inc Viacom and its affiliates collectively Paramount pursuant to

distribution agreement and fulfillment services agreement collectively the Paramount

Agreements see Note The Company generally retains all other rights to exploit its films

including commercial tie-in and promotional rights
with respect to each film as well as

merchandising interactive literary publishing music publishing and soundtrack rights In addition

the Company continues to expand its business of creating high-quality entertainment through the

development and production of non-theatrical special content such as television specials and series

live theatrical stage performances and online virtual world games based on characters from its feature

films

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company present the stand-alone financial position

results of operations and cash flows of DreamWorks Animation and its wholly owned subsidiaries In

addition the Company reviews its relationships with other entities to identify whether they are

variable interest entities VIE as defined by the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
and to assess whether the Company is the primary beneficiary of such entity If the determination is

made that the Company is the primary beneficiary then the entity is consolidated

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior period consolidated balance sheets have been reclassified to

conform to the 2009 presentation

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted

accounting principles GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes including estimates of

ultimate revenues and ultimate costs of film and television product estimates of product sales that

will be returned and the amount of receivables that ultimately will be collected the potential outcome

of future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Companys financial

statements loss contingencies and estimates used in the determination of the fair value of stock
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

options and other equity awards for stock-based compensation Actual results could differ from those

estimates To the extent that there are material differences between these estimates and actual results

the Companys financial condition or results of operations will be affected Estimates are based on

past experience and other assumptions that management believes are reasonable under the

circumstances and management evaluates these estimates on an ongoing basis

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on deposit and short-term money market investments

principally commercial paper and commercial paper mutual funds that are rated AAA and with

maturities of three months or less when purchased

Financial Instruments and Concentration of Credit Risk

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents accounts receivable accounts payable advances

and bank borrowings if any and other debt approximates carrying value due to the short-term

maturity of such instruments and floating interest rates

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk

consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable The Company limits its

exposure to credit loss by placing its cash and cash equivalents in short-term money-market

investments which are rated AAA with several financial institutions Such investments which are

included in Cash and cash equivalents on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets are

classified as available-for-sale and reported at fair value based on quoted prices in active markets

There were no unrealized gains or losses associated with these investments at December 31 2009

For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company recorded interest income of

$1.0 million $8.5 million and $26.0 million respectively from these investments

Pursuant to the Companys distribution and servicing arrangements significant accounts

receivable may be due from Paramount from time to time As of December 31 2009 and 2008

$171.3 million and $186.5 million respectively were due from Paramount see Note Accounts

receivable resulting from revenues earned in other markets are derived from sales to customers

located principally in North America Europe and Asia The Company and its distributor perform

ongoing credit evaluations of their customers and generally do not require collateral

In vestments

Investments associated with the Companys 2007 non-qualified deferred compensation plan see

Note 13 are classified as available-for-sale Such investments are recorded at fair value and

unrealized gains and losses are included in other comprehensive income/loss until realized For the

years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 any unrealized gains and losses were not material

Investments are reviewed on regular basis to evaluate whether decline in fair value below cost is

other than temporary There were no investment losses recorded for the years ended December 31
2009 and 2008
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the distribution of its animated feature films when

earned and reported to it by its distributor Pursuant to the Paramount Agreements the Company

recognizes revenues derived from its feature films net of reserves for returns rebates and other

incentives after Paramount has retained distribution fee of 8.0% of revenue without deduction

of any distribution and marketing costs or third-party distribution and fulfillment services fees and

ii recovered all of its distribution and marketing costs with respect to the Companys films on title

by title basis Prior to January 2009 Paramount reported the Companys international theatrical

results on 30-day lag this 30-day lag was eliminated effective January 2009 This change in

reporting did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements for the

year ended December 31 2009 International home entertainment results continue to be reported on

30-day lag

Additionally because third party is the principal distributor of the Companys films the

amount of revenue that is recognized from films in any given period is dependent on the timing

accuracy and sufficiency of the information received from Paramount As is typical
in the film

industry Paramount may make adjustments in future periods to information previously provided to

the Company that could have material impact on the Companys operating results in later periods

Furthermore management may in its judgment make material adjustments in future periods to the

information reported by Paramount to ensure that revenues are accurately reflected in the Companys

financial statements To date Paramount has not made subsequent nor has the Company made
material adjustments to information provided by Paramount and used in the preparation of the

Companys historical financial statements

Revenue from the theatrical exhibition of films is recognized at the later of when film is

exhibited in theaters or when revenue is reported by Paramount

Revenue from the sale of feature film home video units is recognized at the later of when

product is made available for retail sale and when video sales to customers are reported by third

parties such as fulfillment service providers or distributors The Company and its distributor provide

for future returns of home entertainment product and for customer programs and sales incentives

Management calculates these estimates by analyzing combination of historical returns current

economic trends projections of consumer demand for the Companys product and point-of-sale data

available from certain retailers Based on this information percentage of each sale is reserved and

in the case of product returns provided that the customer has the right of return Customers are

typically given varying rights of return from 15% up to 100% However although the Company and

its distributor allow various rights of return for customers management does not believe that these

rights are critical in establishing return estimates because other factors such as historical experience

with similar types of sales information received from retailers and managements assessment of the

products appeal based on domestic box office success and other research are more important to the

estimation process
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Revenue from both free and pay television licensing agreements is recognized at the later of the

time the production is made available for exhibition in those markets or it is reported by Paramount

Long-term non-interest-bearing receivables arising from television licensing agreements are

discounted to present value in amounts due from our distributor

Revenue from licensing and merchandising arrangements is recognized when the associated

feature film or television special has been released and the criteria for revenue recognition have been

met Licensing and merchandising related minimum guarantees are generally recognized as revenue

upon the theatrical release of film and royalty-based revenues revenues based upon percentage of

net sales of the products are generally recognized as revenue in periods when royalties are reported

by licensees or cash is received

Costs of Revenues

Film Costs The production cost of the Companys animated feature films and television

specials are stated at the lower of cost less accumulated amortization or fair value Production

overhead component of film costs includes allocable costs of individuals or departments with

exclusive or significant responsibility for the production of films or television product Substantially

all of the Companys resources are dedicated to the production of its films Capitalized production

overhead does not include selling general and administrative expenses Interest expense on funds

invested in production is capitalized into film costs until production is completed In addition to the

films and television specials being produced costs of productions in development are capitalized as

development film costs and are transferred to film production costs when film or television special

is set for production In the event film or television special is not set for production within three

years from the time the first costs are capitalized or the film or television special is abandoned all

such costs are generally expensed

Film Cost Amortization Once film or television special is released film costs are amortized

and participations and residual costs are accrued on an individual title basis in the proportion that the

revenue during the period for each title Current Revenue bears to the estimated remaining total

revenue to be received from all sources for each title Ultimate Revenue as of the beginning of

the current fiscal period The amount of film costs that is amortized each period will depend on the

ratio of Current Revenue to Ultimate Revenue for each film or television special for such period The

Company makes certain estimates and judgments of Ultimate Revenue to be received for each title

based on information received from its distributor and its knowledge of the industry Ultimate

Revenue does not include estimates of revenue that will be earned beyond ten years of films initial

theatrical release date

Estimates of Ultimate Revenue and anticipated participation and residual costs are reviewed

periodically in the ordinary course of business and are revised if necessary change in any given

period to the Ultimate Revenue for an individual title will result in an increase or decrease to the

percentage of amortization of capitalized film costs and accrued participation and residual costs

relative to previous period
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Unamortized film production costs are evaluated for impairment each reporting period on

title-by-title basis If estimated remaining net cash flows are not sufficient to recover the unamortized

film costs for that film or television special the unamortized film costs will be written down to fair

value determined using net present value calculation

Other Direct costs for sales commissions to third parties for the licensing and merchandising

of film characters and marketing and promotion costs and other product costs associated with Shrek

The Musical and certain of the Companys television specials are recorded in costs of revenues and

are expensed when incurred

Product Development

The Company records product development costs which primarily consist of costs incurred

pursuant to development agreements with third-party software developers Product development

costs incurred prior to reaching technological feasibility are expensed Certain software development

costs incurred after technological feasibility of the software is established or for development costs

that have alternative future uses are capitalized The Company determined that technological

feasibility for its online virtual world product based on Kung Fu Panda was established as of the

second quarter 2009 and accordingly began to capitalize such costs at that time Any product

development costs incurred to date for other titles have been expensed as technological feasibility
has

not been established At December 31 2009 amounts capitalized were not material and no costs were

capitalized at December 31 2008

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company records employee stock-based compensation by measuring the cost of employee

services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of

the award see Note 13

Estimates of the fair value of stock options are not intended to predict actual future events or the

value ultimately realized by employees who receive stock option awards and subsequent events are

not indicative of the reasonableness of the original estimates of fair value made by us Changes to the

Companys underlying stock price or satisfaction of performance criteria for performance-based

awards granted to employees could significantly
affect compensation expense to be recognized in

future periods In addition future grants of equity awards will result in additional compensation

expense in future periods
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at the lower of cost or fair value Depreciation of

property plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives

assigned to each major asset category as shown below

Asset Category Estimated Useful Life

Buildings 40 years

Building Improvements 5-10 years

Furniture Fixtures and Other 4-10 years

Software and Computer Equipment 2-5 years

Effective in the fourth quarter of 2008 on prospective basis the useful life for selected types of

software such as financial system software was determined to be five years

Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the life of the asset

not to exceed the length of the lease Amortization of assets acquired under capital leases is included

in depreciation expense Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred

In addition the Company consolidated the special-purpose entity that acquired its Glendale

animation campus in March 2002 Accordingly $60.3 million of property plant and equipment net

of $11.9 million of accumulated depreciation which represents the lower of the cost or fair value of

the Glendale animation campus and $70.1 million of debt and $2.9 million minority interest

respectively are included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2008

In accordance with the terms of the financing arrangement the entire amount of the obligation $73.0

million was repaid upon maturity in October 2009 see Note

Provision for Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method Accordingly

deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to

differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and

their respective tax basis and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in

which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax

assets and liabilities of change in tax rates or change in tax status is recognized in income in the

period that includes the enactment date The Company records valuation allowance to reduce its

deferred income tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized In evaluating its

ability to recover its deferred income tax assets the Company considers all available positive and

negative evidence including its operating results ongoing prudent and feasible tax-planning

strategies and forecasts of future taxable income

At the time of the Companys separation from the entity then known as DreamWorks L.L.C

OldDreamWorks Studios in 2004 affiliates controlled by former significant stockholder
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

entered into series of transactions that resulted in partial
increase in the tax basis of the

Companys tangible and intangible assets Tax Basis Increase This Tax Basis Increase was

initially $1.61 billion with potential to reduce the amount of tax that the Company may pay in the

future to the extent the Company generates sufficient future taxable income by $595 million The

Company is obligated to remit to the affiliate of the former stockholder 85% of any such cash savings

under this Stockholders Tax Agreement in U.S Federal income tax and California franchise tax

and certain other related tax benefits subject to repayment if it is determined that these savings

should not have been available to the Company Additionally the tax effects of transactions with

shareholders that result in changes in the tax basis of companys assets and liabilities should be

recognized in equity If transactions with shareholders result in the recognition of deferred tax assets

from changes in the companys tax basis of assets and liabilities the valuation allowance initially

required upon recognition of these deferred assets should be recorded in equity Realized tax benefits

created by such transactions with shareholders in subsequent periods should be included in

companys income statement

The Company uses single comprehensive model to address uncertainty in tax positions that

establishes the minimum recognition threshold and measurement attribute for tax positions taken or

expected to be taken in tax return in order to be recognized in the financial statements The

Company continues to follow the practice of recognizing interest and penalties related to income tax

matters as part of the provision for income taxes

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates for impairment losses on long-lived assets used in operations when

indicators of impairment are present and the undiscounted cash flows estimated to be generated by

those assets are less than the assets carrying amount The Company has not identified any such

impairment indicators or recorded any impairment losses

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In connection with the Companys separation from Old DreamWorks Studios in 2004 Old

DreamWorks Studios contributed to the Company its interests in Pacific Data Images Inc PD
and its subsidiary Pacific Data Images LLC PD LLCThe Company has goodwill of

approximately $36.9 million as of December 31 2009 and 2008 less accumulated amortization of

$2.7 million related to PD The Company performed an annual impairment test for goodwill in

October of 2009 2008 and 2007 and determined that there was no impairment

Additionally intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful life to

the Company and are reviewed for impairment Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized on

straight-line basis over period of three to five years Amortization for the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 was not material The Company expects to record $5.7 million of amortization

over the next five years
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Earnings Per Share

The Company calculates basic per share amounts excluded dilution and using the weighted

average number of common shares outstanding for the period which includes the effects of treasury

share purchases Diluted per share amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of

common shares outstanding during the period and if dilutive potential common shares outstanding

during the period Potential common shares include unvested restricted stock and common shares

issuable upon exercise of stock options and stock appreciation rights using the treasury stock method

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of two components net income and other comprehensive

income Other comprehensive income refers to revenue expenses gains and losses that under

generally accepted accounting principles are recorded as an element of stockholders equity but are

excluded from net income For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively the

amounts that were classified as other comprehensive income were not material

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the FASB issued new standards setting forth single source of authoritative

GAAP for all non-governmental entities Codification The Codification which commenced

July 2009 changes the referencing and organization of accounting guidance The Codification was

effective for the Company beginning the quarter ended September 30 2009 The Codification does

not change GAAP and oniy affects how specific references to GAAP literature are disclosed in the

notes to the Companys consolidated financial statements

In October 2009 the FASB issued guidance on revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables

which is effective for the Company in 2010 although early adoption is permitted The guidance

revises the criteria for separating measuring and allocating consideration received for deliverables

under multiple element arrangements The guidance requires companies to allocate revenue using the

relative selling price of each deliverable which must be estimated if the Company does not have

history of selling the deliverable on stand-alone basis or third-party evidence of selling price The

Company is assessing the potential effect of this guidance on its consolidated financial statements

Additionally the Company adopted the FASBs new guidance regarding subsequent events

effective beginning the quarter ended June 30 2009 Accordingly the Company has evaluated for

disclosure subsequent events that have occurred up to February 23 2010 the date of issuance of its

financial statements

Distribution and Servicing Arrangements

Distribution and Servicing Arrangements with Paramount Pursuant to the Paramount

Agreements the Company granted Paramount and its affiliates including Old DreamWorks Studios

the right to distribute its feature films in theatrical home entertainment and television markets on
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

worldwide basis through the later of the Companys delivery to Paramount of 13 new animated

feature films and ii December 31 2012 unless in either case terminated earlier in accordance with

the terms of the Paramount Agreements The Company generally retains all other rights to exploit its

films including commercial tie-in and promotional rights with respect to each film as well as

merchandising interactive literary publishing music publishing and soundtrack rights If the

Company or Paramount terminates the Paramount Agreements the Companys existing and future

films will generally be subject to the terms of any sub-distribution servicing and licensing

agreements entered into by Paramount that the Company has pre-approved

The Paramount Agreements provide that DreamWorks Animation is responsible for all of the

costs of developing and producing its films including participation and residual costs and

Paramount is generally responsible for all out-of-pocket costs charges and expenses incurred in the

distribution including prints and the manufacture of home video units advertising marketing

publicizing and promotion of each film The Paramount Agreements also provide that Paramount is

entitled to retain fee of 8.0% of revenue without deduction of any distribution or marketing

costs and third-party distribution and fulfillment services fees and ii recoup all of its distribution

and marketing costs and home video fulfillment costs with respect to the Companys films on

title-by-title basis prior to the Company receiving any proceeds If film does not generate revenue

in all media net of the 8.0% fee sufficient for Paramount to recoup its expenses under the Paramount

Agreements Paramount will not be entitled to recoup those costs from proceeds of the Companys

other films and the Company will not be required to repay Paramount for such unrecouped amounts

In addition under the Paramount Agreements Paramount is obligated to pay the Company

annual cost reimbursements of approximately $4.6 million per film which the Company is

recognizing as revenue upon the release of that film These annual cost reimbursements are

independent from Paramounts right to recoup its distribution and marketing costs for each film and

as result are recorded as revenue by the Company without regard to Paramounts recoupment

position

Paramount Other Services and Information As of December 31 2009 the Company

provided limited office space and telecommunications support to Paramount For the years ended

December 31 2008 and 2007 Paramount also provided the Company with corporate aircraft services

pursuant to the terms of an aircraft time-share agreement The cost of corporate aircraft services was

reimbursed pursuant to the maximum amount permitted under the Federal Aviation Administration

time-sharing regulations For the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 the Company incurred

costs from Paramount totaling $1.6 million and $0.9 respectively For the years ended December 31

2009 2008 and 2007 Paramount was charged costs by the Company totaling $0.2 million $0.3

million and $0.4 million respectively In addition under the terms of the Paramount Agreements

Paramount provides the Company with certain production-related services including but not limited

to film music creative and licensing services archiving of film materials and credits assistance as

well as participation and residual accounting services
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DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Film Costs

Film costs consist of the following in thousands

December 31

2009 2008

In release net of amortization

Animated feature films1 $204598 $326861

Television specials 28511 3124

In production

Animated feature films 428344 251066

Television specials 13145 7207

In development 21365 49985

Total film costs $695963 $638243

Includes $13.3 million and $23.1 million of stage musical costs at December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively

The Company anticipates that approximately 46% and 81% of in release film costs as of

December 31 2009 will be amortized over the next 12 months and three years respectively

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment consist of the following in thousands

December 31

2009 2008

Land buildings and improvements $178132 $135107

Furniture and equipment 16779 13432

Computer hardware and software 48515 31179

Total property plant and equipment 243426 179718

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 81868 64805

Property plant and equipment net $161558 $114913

For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 the Company recorded depreciation

and amortization expense other than film amortization of $17.3 million $14.2 million and $6.5

million respectively of which $15.6 million $11.2 million and $4.9 million respectively were

capitalized as film production costs
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Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consist of the following in thousands

Employee compensation

Participations and residuals

Deferred rent

Other accrued liabilities

Total accrued liabilities

December 31

The Company estimates that in 2010 it will pay approximately $17.8 million of its

participation
and residual costs accrued as of December 31 2009

Deferred Revenue and Other Advances

The following is summary of deferred revenue and other advances included in the

consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related amounts earned and

recorded either as revenue in the consolidated statements of income or capitalized as an offset to film

costs for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 in thousands

Home Box Office Inc Advance

Licensing Advances2

Deferred Revenue2

Strategic Alliance/Development Advances3

Other Advances4

Total deferred revenue and other advances

Balance at December 31

2009 2008

32549

1547

2007

_______
2754

_______
$38857

44045

5542

1767

9516

$60870

Amounts Earned

For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

$26666 $26666 $27321

29504 6636 8257

3426 26449 41309

15240 15597 13107

7763 10124 9706

The Company remains participant of an exclusive multi-picture domestic pay television

license agreement originally entered into between Old DreamWorks Studios and Home Box

Office Inc HBO pursuant to which the Company receives advances against license fees

payable for future film product The agreement is currently expected to extend through 2012

Under the agreement the Company is obligated to refund the advances if the amount received is

in excess of the license fees earned by the films

Amounts received from customers for the licensing of the Companys animated characters on

worldwide basis received prior to the availability date of the product

2009

39087

38592

4023

29579

$111281

2008

52157

37220

5806

19975

$115158
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The Company has strategic alliances with various technology companies pursuant to which the

companies are permitted to promote themselves as DreamWorks Animations preferred

technology provider in exchange for advancing the Company specified annual amounts In

addition under the agreements the Company makes purchases of the technology companies

equipment During the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 of the total amounts

earned against the Strategic Alliance/Development Advances $9.4 million $10.3 million and

$5.5 million respectively were capitalized as an offset to film costs or property plant and

equipment

Primarily consists of the annual cost reimbursements received from Paramount see Note

which are initially recorded as an advance and then allocated to each of the films delivered to

Paramount and recognized as revenue upon the release of that film

Financing Arrangements

Outstanding Financing The following table summarizes the balances outstanding and other

information associated with the Companys various financing arrangements that were outstanding at

December 31 2009 and 2008 in thousands

Outstanding at Rf Interest Cost

December 31 December31
For the Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 Maturity Date 2009 2009 2008 2007

Animation Campus

Financing $73000 N/A N/A $1090 $3069 $4765

Revolving Credit

Facility
June2013 0.375% 488 254 N/A

Animation Campus Financing The special-purpose entity associated with this financing was

consolidated by the Company as of December 31 2003 and as such the balance of the obligation

has been presented on the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31 2008 as $70.1 million of

bank borrowings and other debt and $2.9 million minority interest In accordance with the terms of

the financing arrangement the entire amount of the obligation $73.0 million was repaid upon

maturity in October 2009 The financing bore interest primarily at 30-day commercial paper rates and

was fully collateralized by the underlying real property

Credit Facility Agreements On June 24 2008 the Company entered into new revolving

credit facility Revolving Credit Facility with several banks pursuant to which the Company is

permitted to borrow up to $125.0 million The Company is required to pay commitment fee at an

annual rate of 0.375% on undrawn amounts Interest on borrowed amounts is determined by

reference to either the lending banks base rate plus 0.50% per annum or ii LIBOR plus 1.50% per

annum Borrowings are secured by substantially all the Companys assets The Revolving Credit

Facility requires the Company to maintain specified leverage ratio and subject to specific

exceptions prohibits the Company from taking certain actions without the lenders consent such as
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granting liens or entering into any merger or other significant transaction The Revolving Credit

Facility terminates on June 24 2013 There have been no borrowings under Revolving Credit Facility

to date

In connection with entering into the Revolving Credit Facility the Company terminated its prior

$100 million revolving credit facility Prior Credit Facility The Company did not incur any

material termination penalties in connection with this termination Under the Prior Credit Facility the

Company was required to pay commitment fee of 0.75% on undrawn amounts This fee totaled $0.4

million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively

As of December 31 2009 the Company was in compliance with all applicable financial debt

covenants

Additional Financing Information

HBO Subordinated Notes In November 2007 the Company repaid in full $50 million of

subordinated notes outstanding to HBO Prior to repayment the subordinated notes bore interest at

rate in amount equal to the LIBOR rate plus 0.50% per annum and the Company incurred associated

interest cost for the year ended December 31 2007 of $3.9 million

Interest Capitalized to Film Costs Interest capitalized to film costs during the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 totaled $1.1 million $3.0 million and $8.6 million respectively

Income Taxes

The following are the components of the provision for income taxes in thousands for the years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

2009 2008 2007

Current

Federal $11894 $1452 42324

State and local 953 1244 6420

Foreign 1211 1420 1571

Total current provision benefit 9730 1276 50315

Deferred

Federal 20854 21616 40930

State and local 1474

Total deferred provision benefit 19380 21616 40930

Total income tax provision 9650 $20340 9385
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The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 differs

from the amounts computed by applying the U.S Federal statutory rate of 35% to income before

income taxes and decrease increase in income tax benefit payable to former stockholder as

pursuant to the Stockholders Tax Agreement as result of the following

2009 2008 2007

Provision for income taxes excluding effects of former Stockholders Tax

Agreement1

U.S Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

U.S state taxes net of Federal benefit 1.0 1.8 1.8

Revaluation of deferred tax assets net 7.5 5.2 3.7

Export sales exclusion/manufacturers deduction 0.7 5.8 1.3

Other 2.4 2.3 0.3

Total provision excluding effect of former Stockholders Tax

Agreement 25.4% 23.5% 32.1%

Effects of former Stockholders Tax Agreement1

U.S state taxes net of Federal benefit 1.3 1.2 0.9

Revaluation of deferred tax assets net 21.3 12.2 27.1

Export sales exclusion/manufacturers deduction 0.7 1.0 0.6

Other 1.3 0.2 1.7

Total effect of former Stockholders Tax Agreement1 20.6% 12.6% 29.1%

Total net provision for income taxes 4.8% 10.9% 3.0%

The Company is obligated to remit to the affiliate of former significant
stockholder 85% of

any such cash savings in U.S Federal income tax and California franchise tax and certain other

related tax benefits see Note
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portion of the deferred tax

assets and deferred tax liabilities as of December 31 2009 and 2008 are presented below in

thousands

December 31

2009 2008

Deferred tax assets

Tax Basis Increase pursuant to Stockholders

Tax Agreement 384445 438095

Stock compensation 26733 32521

Other liabilities 12115 10535

Fixed assets 3901 5769

Film development basis 14147 11560

Other 14250 10074

Deferred tax assets 455591 508554

Less Valuation allowance 350109 422770

Deferred tax assets net of valuation

allowance 105482 85784

Deferred tax liabilities

Film basis net of amortization and other 97813 58735

Deferred tax liabilities 97813 58735

Net deferred tax assets 7669 27049

The valuation allowance decreased by $72.7 million and $33.5 million for the years ended

December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively

Income tax expense benefit attributable to equity-based transactions of $0.5 million and $0.5

million were allocated to stockholders equity for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively

Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards totaled $8.5 million and $0.2 million

respectively as of December 31 2009 and will begin to expire in 2018 and 2014 respectively

The Companys California Franchise tax returns for the years ended December 31 2004 through

2007 are currently under examination by the Franchise Tax Board FTB The Internal Revenue

Service IRS concluded its audits of the Companys federal income tax return for the periods

through December 31 2006 The Companys federal income tax returns for the tax years ended

December 31 2007 and 2008 are currently under examination by the IRS All tax years since the

Companys separation from Old DreamWorks Studios remain open to audit by all state and local

taxing jurisdictions
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The balances and activity in the unrecognized tax benefits from December 31 2007 to 2009 are

presented below in thousands

Deferred Tax Former

Accrued Deferred Valuation Interest Stockholder

Taxes Taxes Allowance and Penalties Payable Total

Balance at December 31

2006 7287 2238 9525

AdoptionofFlN48 11347 52419 56563 914 4163 2126

Prior year additions 1076 56563 4163 61802

Prior year reductions 9406 52419 99 61924

Settlements of prior

years 629 629

Current year additions 1073 951 2024

Balance at December 31
2007 10748 2176 12924

Prior year additions 1646 98 599 2343

Prior year reductions 8645 1871 10516

Settlements of prior

years 219 219

Current year additions 763 273 85 1121

Balance at December 31
2008 4731 676 684 6091

Prior year additions 404 382 792

Current year additions 1614 281 417 2312

Balance at December 31

2009 6749 963 1483 9195

The unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31 2009 if fully realized would affect the

Companys future effective tax rate

As of December 31 2009 any changes that are reasonably possible to occur within the next 12

months to the Companys unrecognized tax benefits are not expected to be material

10 Related Party Transactions

Class Share Repurchases from Stockholders During 2007 the Company repurchased

4813863 shares of the Companys Class common stock for total of $150.0 million from

former significant
stockholder see Note 12

In November 2007 the Company repurchased 1100000 shares of the Companys Class

common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $32.6 million from charitable organization
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originally established by David Geffen significant stockholder and member of the Companys

Board of Directors until his resignation in October 2008 The shares were received by the charitable

organization via donation by Mr Geffen see Note 12 In addition during November 2007 the

Company repurchased 357000 shares of the Companys Class common stock for an aggregate

purchase price of $10.1 million directly from Mr Geffen see Note 12

Arrangement with Affiliate of FormerStockholder The Company has an arrangement with

an affiliate of former significant stockholder who was stockholder during the year ended

December 31 2007 to share tax benefits generated by the stockholder see Note and

Aircraft Sub-lease Agreement with Stockholder In June 2008 the Company entered into an

aircraft sublease the Sublease agreement with an entity controlled by Jeffrey Katzenberg the

Companys Chief Executive Officer and significant stockholder for use of an aircraft that such

entity leases from the aircraft owner company jointly owned indirectly by Mr Katzenberg and

Mr Spielberg who is also stockholder in the Company Under the Sublease the Company pays all

the aircraft operating expense on Mr Katzenberg Company-related flights In addition in the event

that Mr Katzenberg uses the aircraft for Company-related travel more than 34 hours in any calendar

year the Company pays the subleasing entity specified hourly rate for those hours For the years

ended December 31 2009 and 2008 the Company incurred $1.2 million and $0.9 million of costs

related to the sublease

11 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has entered into various noncancelable operating leases for office space for

general and administrative and production purposes with terms that expire in 2010 and 2012 Certain

of these office leases contain annual rent escalations and require the Company to pay property taxes

insurance and normal maintenance For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 the

Company incurred lease expense of approximately $7.6 million $6.9 million and $5.1 million

respectively

Future minimum lease commitments for all leases are as follows in thousands

Operating

Lease

Commitments

2010 7257

2011 6159

2012

2013 and thereafter

Total $16991

Additionally as of December 31 2009 the Company had contractual commitment related to

the expansion of its headquarters located in Glendale California totaling approximately $7.5 million

that is payable over the next year and had non-cancelable talent commitments totaling approximately

$30.8 million that are payable over the next five years
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Legal Proceedings

Other Matters From time to time the Company is involved in legal proceedings arising in the

ordinary course of its business typically intellectual property litigation and infringement claims

related to the Companys feature filmswhich could cause the Company to incur significant expenses

or prevent the Company from releasing film The Company also has been the subject of patent and

copyright claims relating to technology and ideas that it may use or feature in connection with the

production marketing or exploitation of the Companys feature films which may affect the

Companys ability to continue to do so While the resolution of these matters cannot be predicted

with certainty the Company does not believe based on current knowledge that any existing legal

proceedings or claims are likely to have material adverse effect on its financial position results of

operations or liquidity

12 Stockholders Equity

The Company has authorized two classes of common stock 350 million shares of Class

con-rn-ion stock and 150 million shares of Class common stock The Class common stock and

Class common stock each have par value of $0.01 per share and are identical and generally vote

together on all matters except that the Class common stock carries one vote per share whereas the

Class common stock carries 15 votes per share

Class and Class Common Stock Transactions

Secondary Public Offering On August 2007 stockholder sold 10186137 shares of the

Companys Class common stock in registered secondary public offering the 2007 Offering

The Company did not receive any proceeds from the 2007 Offering and as the shares of Class

common stock sold in the 2007 Offering were comprised entirely of existing outstanding shares held

by the stockholder there was no change to the total amount of the Companys shares outstanding

Certain of the Companys significant stockholders continue to have demand registration rights

granted to them at the time of the Companys initial public offering

Stock Repurchase Programs In December 2007 the Companys Board of Directors approved

stock repurchase program pursuant to which the Company was authorized to repurchase up to an

aggregate of $150.0 million of its outstanding stock In July 2008 the Companys Board of Directors

terminated the December 2007 share repurchase program which had approximately $62.0 million of

unused authorization and approved new stock repurchase program pursuant to which the Company

was authorized to repurchase up to an additional aggregate of $150.0 million of its outstanding stock

Pursuant to these programs during the year ended December 31 2008 the Company repurchased

approximately 6.8 million shares of its outstanding Class common stock for approximately $184.7

million Additionally for the period January 2009 through April 21 2009 the Company

repurchased approximately 2.3 million shares of its outstanding Class common stock for $45.7

million pursuant to the program approved in July 2008 On April 22 2009 the Companys Board of

Directors terminated the July 2008 stock repurchase program and authorized new stock repurchase
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program pursuant to which the Company may repurchase up to an aggregate of $150 million of its

outstanding stock The Company has made no purchases under its new authorization as of

February 23 2010

Additionally during the year ended December 31 2007 pursuant to another stock repurchase

program previously approved by the Companys Board of Directors the Company repurchased

6319763 million shares of the Companys stock for total of $193.4 million which was the total

amount authorized under the program Purchases made under the program included $150.0 million of

shares of Class common stock purchased directly from former stockholder see Note 10 In

addition during 2007 pursuant to individual stock repurchase agreements approved by the Companys

Board of Directors the Company repurchased 3126500 shares of the Companys Class common

stock from various charitable organizations for an aggregate cost of $97.2 million These purchases

involved the purchase of 1100000 shares from charitable foundation established by Mr Geffen and

1257000 shares from different foundation Both foundations received the shares via donation from

Mr Geffen who prior to their donation converted them into the Companys Class common stock

from an equal number of previously outstanding Class common stock Additionally in 2007 the

Company also repurchased 357000 shares of the Companys Class common stock directly from

Mr Geffen for an aggregate purchase price of $10.1 million

Other Conversions of Class Common Stock During 2008 and 2007 Mr Geffen converted

1565000 and 336000 shares respectively of the Companys Class common stock into an equal

amount of shares of the Companys Class common These transactions had no impact on the total

amount of the Companys shares outstanding

Other

During the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company concluded that at the time of its separation from

Old DreamWorks Studios and thus also at the time of Viacoms acquisition of Old DreamWorks

Studios certain amounts due from the Company to Old DreamWorks Studios were

overstated Accordingly the Company reclassified $33.3 million liability balance previously

included in the receivable from Paramount into Stockholders Equity as an adjustment to the

contribution of net liabilities from Old DreamWorks Studios upon the separation

13 Employee Benefits Plan

401k Plan

The Company sponsors defined contribution retirement plan the 401k Plan under

provisions of Section 401k of the Internal Revenue Code IRC Substantially all employees not

covered by collective bargaining agreements are eligible to participate in the 40k Plan The

maximum contribution for the Companys match is currently equal to 50% of the employees

contribution up to 4% of their eligible compensation as limited by Sec 415 of the IRC The costs of

the Companys match as well as all third-party costs of administering the 401k Plan are paid

directly by the Company and totaled $1.9 million $1.5 million and $1.4 million for each of the years

ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively
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Employee Equity Plans

In February 2008 the Companys Board of Directors approved subject to approval by the

Companys stockholders the 2008 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan 2008 Omnibus Plan
The Companys stockholders approved the 2008 Omnibus Plan in May 2008 Concurrent with such

approval the 2008 Omnibus Plan automatically terminated replaced and superseded the Companys

prior plan the 2004 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan 2004 Omnibus Plan and collectively

with the 2008 Omnibus Plan the Omnibus Plans except that any awards granted under the Prior

Omnibus Plan would remain in effect pursuant to their original terms Both Omnibus Plans provided for

the grant of incentive stock options non-qualified stock options stock appreciation rights restricted

share awards restricted stock units performance compensation awards performance units and other

stock equity awards to the Companys employees directors and consultants Pursuant to the 2008

Omnibus Plan the aggregate number of shares of Class common stock that may be issued pursuant to

awards granted under the 2008 Omnibus Plan is 8.3 million plus ii any shares with respect to

awards granted under the 2004 Omnibus Plan that are forfeited following the adoption date of the 2008

Omnibus Plan Pursuant to an amendment to the 2008 Omnibus Plan approved by the Companys

stockholders on June 10 2009 for any restricted stock award or similar award granted after such date

the number of shares available for future awards will be reduced by 1.6 times the number of shares

subject to such award As of December 31 2009 approximately 3.1 million shares were available for

future grants of equity awards under the 2008 Omnibus Plan

Compensation Cost Recognized The impact of stock options including stock appreciation

rights and restricted stock awards on net income for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and

2007 respectively was as follows in thousands
2009 2008 2007

Total equity-based compensation $30191 $37600 34037

Tax impact 7668 8836 10915

Reduction in net income $22523 $28764 23122

Tax impact is determined at the Companys blended effective tax rate excluding the effect of

the former Stockholders Tax Agreement see Note

Equity-based compensation cost capitalized as part of film costs was $10.7 million

$7.1 million and $4.2 million for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

The Company recognizes compensation costs for equity awards granted to its employees based

on their grant-date fair value Most of the Companys equity awards contain vesting conditions

dependent upon the completion of specified service periods or achievement of established sets of

performance criteria Compensation cost for service-based equity awards is recognized ratably over

the vesting period Compensation cost for performance-based awards is adjusted to reflect the

estimated probability of vesting Generally equity awards are forfeited by employees who terminate

prior to vesting However certain employment contracts for certain named executive officers provide

for the acceleration of vesting in the event of change in control or specified termination events In

addition the Company has granted equity awards of stock appreciation rights and restricted shares

subject to market-based conditions Compensation costs related to awards with market-based
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condition will be recognized regardless of whether the market condition is satisfied provided that the

requisite service has been provided The Company currently satisfies exercises of stock options and

stock appreciation rights the vesting of restricted stock and the delivery of shares upon the vesting of

restricted stock units with the issuance of new shares

The following table summarizes information about restricted stock activity under the Omnibus

Plans in thousands except per share amounts

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Grant- Average Grant- Average Grant-

Restricted Date Restricted Date Restricted Date

Stock Fair Value Stock Fair Value Stock Fair Value

Outstanding at beginning

of period 3413 $28.33 2687 $28.88 2551 $27.88

Granted 1536 $27.02 1282 $28.12 613 $31.21

Vested 1523 $28.28 489 $29.09 369 $28.08

Forfeited 194 $28.42 67 $29.29 108 $28.88

Balance at end of year 3232 $27.72 3413 $28.33 2687 $28.88

Compensation cost related to restricted stock awards that vest solely upon service is based upon

the market price of the Companys stock on the date of grant and is recognized on straight-line

basis over requisite service period of four to seven years In addition the Company has granted

restricted stock awards that vest either upon the achievement of certain cumulative performance

goals over four-year period as set by the Compensation Committee of the Companys Board of

Directors Compensation Committee or certain market-based criteria such as stock price

appreciation In addition to the attainment of either the performance or market-based criteria the

vesting of the individual awards is further subject to the completion of required service periods

ranging from three to five years The following table summarizes by year of grant the number of

restricted stock awards for which vesting is subject to the achievement of either performance or

market-based criteria in thousands

Performance- Market-

Year of Grant Based Based Total

2009 900 900

2008 516 516

2006 41 41 82

2005 1021 1021

Total 1062 1457 2519

The Company made no grants of restricted stock for which vesting was subject to performance

or market-based criteria during the year ended December 31 2007
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In February 2009 the Compensation Committee certified that the related four-year cumulative

performance goals had been achieved with respect to approximately 900000 shares of the

performance-based restricted stock granted in 2005 Approximately 100000 shares of the

performance-based restricted stock granted in 2005 were forfeited because the related performance

goals were not satisfied Additionally in February 2010 the Compensation Committee certified that

the related four-year cumulative performance goals and the required market conditions had been

achieved with respect to all of the performance-based and market-based restricted stock granted in

2006 The total intrinsic value of restricted shares that vested totaled $40.7 million during 2009

$12.8 million during 2008 and $11.2 million during 2007 The total fair value at grant of restricted

stock that vested during 2009 2008 and 2007 was $43.1 million $14.2 million and $10.4 million

respectively

The fair value of stock option grants or stock appreciation rights which are to be settled in

stock with service or performance-based vesting condition is estimated on the date of grant using

the Black-Scholes option-pricing model Primary input assumptions of the Black-Scholes model used

to estimate the fair value of stock options include the grant price of the award the Companys

dividend yield volatility of the Companys stock the risk-free interest rate and expected option term

Given the Companys lack of sufficient historical exercise data for stock option grants it uses the

simplified method of calculating the weighted average expected term The simplified method

defines the weighted average expected term as being the average of the weighted average of the

vesting period and contractual term of each stock option granted Once sufficient information

regarding exercise behavior such as historical exercise data or exercise information from external

sources becomes available the Company will utilize another method to determine the weighted

average expected term In addition the Companys estimate of volatility incorporates both historical

volatility and the implied volatility of publicly traded options Equity awards of stock options and

stock appreciation rights are generally granted with an exercise price based on the market price of the

Companys stock on the date of grant generally vest over term of four to seven years and expire 10

years after the date of grant Compensation cost for stock options is recognized ratably over the

vesting period Estimates of the fair value of stock options are not intended to predict actual future

events or the value ultimately realized by employees who receive stock option awards and

subsequent events are not indicative of the reasonableness of the original estimates of fair value made

by the Company

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model were as follows

2009 2008 2007

Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

Expected volatility
37-42% 1-35% 1-35%

Risk-free interest rate 2.55-3.06% 2.75-3.52% 3.94%-4.80%

Weighted average expected term years 6.25 6.25 6.2

For equity awards subject to market-based conditions such as stock-price appreciation the

Company uses Monte-Carlo simulation option-pricing model to determine the grant-date fair value
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The Monte-Carlo simulation option-pricing model takes into account the same input assumptions as

the Black-Scholes model as outlined above however it also further incorporates into the fair value

determination the possibility that the market condition may not be satisfied and impact of the

possible differing stock price paths

The following table summarizes information about stock option\stock appreciation rights

activity under the Omnibus Plans in thousands except per share amounts

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Options Average Exercise Options Average Exercise Options Average Exercise

Outstanding Price per Share Outstanding Price per Share Outstanding Price per Share

Outstanding at

beginning of

period 5699 $28.75 4680 $28.62 3693 $27.29

Options

granted 2632 $27.14 1214 $28.06 1225 $31.44

Options

exercised 290 $26.27 110 $15.05 116 $15.30

Options

expired

canceled ... 210 $28.48 85 $29.16 122 $29.21

Balance at end

of year 7831 $28.30 5699 $28.75 4680 $28.62

Of stock option\stock appreciation rights awards granted by the Company the following table

sets forth by grant year the number for which vesting are further subject to the achievement of certain

performance or market-based criteria in thousands

Performance- Market-

Year of Grant Based Based Total

2009 1600 1600

2006 28 28 56

2005 690 690

Total 718 1628 2346

The Company made no grants of stock options or stock appreciation rights for which vesting

was subject to performance or market-based criteria during the years ended December 31 2008

or 2007

In February 2009 the Compensation Committee certified that the related four-year cumulative

performance goals had been achieved with respect to all the performance-based stock options granted
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in 2005 Additionally in February 2010 the Compensation Committee certified that the related four-

year cumulative performance goals and required market conditions had been achieved with respect to

all the performance-based and market-based stock options granted in 2006 The weighted average

grant-date fair value of options granted during the years 2009 2008 and 2007 was $9.71 $10.98 and

$12.59 respectively The total intrinsic value market value on date of exercise less exercise price of

options exercised totaled $2.3 million during 2009 $1.5 million during 2008 and $1.8 million during

2007

The following table summarizes information concerning outstanding and exercisable options as

of December 31 2009

Options outstanding Options exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average

Contractual Exercise Exercise

Number Life Price Number Price

Range of Exercise Prices per Share Outstanding in years per Share Exercisable per Share

$8.06 50914 0.33 8.06 50914 8.06

$19.29-$26.92 1946870 8.84 $24.38 173647 $25.20

$27.06-28.00 1387296 4.87 $27.96 1297135 $27.96

$28.10-$32.31 4214068 7.73 $30.13 1648818 $29.82

$32.86-$37.51 230803 6.41 $34.60 161266 $35.26

$37.58-$39.36 1496 5.09 $37.60 1296 $37.61

Total 7831447 7.41 $28.30 3333076 $28.79

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31 2009

was $91.2 million and $37.2 million respectively

In addition to the awards described above in January 2005 additional performance

compensation awards with respect to approximately 1021000 shares of Common Stock were

granted to certain named executive officers No compensation costs were recorded for these awards

because management had determined that it was not probable that the objective performance goals

set by the Compensation Committee would be achieved over the four-year performance period In

February 2009 the Compensation Committee confirmed that these awards had been forfeited

because the four-year performance goals were not achieved

Management makes estimates of expected forfeitures and is recognizing compensation costs

only for those equity awards expected to vest As of December 31 2009 the total compensation cost

related to unvested equity awards granted to employees excluding equity awards with performance

objectives not probable of achievement but not yet recognized was approximately $96.2 million and

will be amortized on straight-line basis over weighted average of 1.8 years

F-32



DREAM WORKS ANIMATION SKG INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Changes to the Companys underlying stock price or satisfaction of performance criteria for

performance-based awards granted to employees could significantly impact compensation expense to

be recognized in future periods In addition future grants of equity awards will result in additional

compensation expense in future periods

Other Employee Benefit Plans

Effective July 2007 the Company adopted the Special Deferral Election Plan the Plan
non-qualified deferred compensation plan The Plan is available for selected employees of the

Company and its subsidiaries For the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 the activity

associated with the Plan was not material

14 Significant Customer Segment and Geographic Information

Significant Customer substantial portion of the Companys revenue is derived directly from

Paramount Paramount represented 83.6% 77.8% and 87.8% of total revenue of the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 respectively

Revenue by Film and Other

The Companys revenues by film and other are as follows in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2009 2008 2007

Monsters vs Aliens 83331

Kung Fu Panda 106132 211513

Madagascar Escape Africa 232374 23966

Shrek the Third 54320 119985 380599

Bee Movie 36653 111386 11688

Overthe Hedge 21585 35176 91211

Flushed Away 26824 25274 38939

Film Library Other2 163960 122752 244741

$725179 $650052 $767178

Bee Movie was released during the quarter ended December 31 2007 Pursuant to the terms of

the Paramount Agreements because the distribution and marketing expenses incurred by

Paramount in the year of the films release exceeded that films gross revenues for such year no

revenue was reported to the Company directly from Paramount with respect to that film in its

year of release

Film Library Other primarily includes film library revenue from Antz Prince of Egypt The

Road to El Dorado Chicken Run Joseph King of Dreams Shrek Spirit Stallion of the

Cimarron Sinbad Legend of the Seven Seas Shrek Shark Tale Wallace Gromit The

Curse of the Were-Rabbit and Madagascar In addition it includes revenue from stage musicals

and television specials
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Geographic Information The Company operates in single segment the production and

distribution of animated films Revenues attributable to foreign countries were approximately $347.0

million $278.3 million and $340.2 million for the years ended December 31 2009 2008 and 2007

respectively Long-lived assets located in foreign countries were not material

15 Earnings Per Share Data

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share in

thousands except per-share amounts

2009 2008 2007

Numerator

Net income $151035 $142498 $218364

Denominator

Weighted average common shares and denominator for

basic calculation

Weighted average common shares outstanding 86818 91598 102144

Less Unvested restricted stock 433 1718 2061

Denominator for basic calculation 86385 89880 100083

Weighted average effects of dilutive equity-based

compensation awards

Employee stock options/stock appreciation

rights
74 100 159

Restricted stock awards 842 996 227

Denominator for diluted calculation 87301 90976 100469

Net income per sharebasic 1.75 1.59 2.18

Net income per sharediluted 1.73 1.57 2.17

The following table sets forth in thousands the weighted average number of options to

purchase shares of common stock stock appreciation rights and equity awards subject to

performance or market conditions which were not included in the calculation of diluted per share

amounts because they were anti-dilutive

2009 2008 2007

Options to purchase shares of common stock 1642 1878 1264

Stock appreciation rights
3482 2680 1484

Equity awards subject to performance or market conditions 2187 257 1849

Total 7311 4815 4597
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16 Quarterly Financial Information Unaudited

The unaudited quarterly financial statements have been prepared on substantially the same basis

as the audited financial statements and in the opinion of management include all adjustments

consisting of only normal and recurring adjustments necessary for fair presentation of the results of

operations for such periods in thousands except per share data

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

unaudited

2009

Revenues $263524 $131990 $135448 $194217

Grossprofit 107118 57968 46382 80344

Income before provision for income taxes 70040 24616 21838 44191

Netincome 62310 25556 19608 43561

Basic net income per share 0.71 0.30 0.23 0.50

Diluted net income per share 0.71 0.30 0.23 0.50

2008

Revenues $157172 $141530 $151525 $199825

Gross profit 60681 65438 76007 82441

Income before provision for income taxes 28289 33533 42131 58885

Net income 26099 27493 37351 51555

Basic net income per share 0.28 0.30 0.42 0.59

Diluted net income per share 0.28 0.30 0.41 0.58

During the quarter ended December 31 2008 the Company recognized tax benefits totaling

$10.5 million related to the resolution of uncertain tax positions taken in prior years See

Note

17 Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves

The following is summary of the valuation and qualifying accounts included in the

consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 in thousands

Deductions

Balance at Credited and

Beginning Charged to Bad Debt Balance at

of Year Operations Write-offs End of Year

Trade accounts receivable and Receivable from

distributor

Allowance for doubtful accounts and Reserve for

returns

2009 $4381 $1350 $2920 $2811

2008 $4504 $2049 $2172 $4381

2007 865 $3990 351 $4504
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EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement Form S-8 No 333-

119994 pertaining to the 2004 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan in the Registration Statement

Form S-8 No 333-143679 pertaining to the Special Deferral Election Plan in the Registration

Statements Form S-8 No 333-150989 and Form S-8 No 333-160015 pertaining to the 2008

Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan and in the Registration Statements Form S-3 No 333-

1387 12 and Form S-3 No 333-145 158 and related Prospectus of DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc

of our reports
dated February 23 2010 with respect to the consolidated financial statements of

DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

of DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc included in this Annual Report Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009

Is/ ERNST YOUNG LLP

Los Angeles California

February 23 2010



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14A OR 15D-14A

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Jeffrey Katzenberg certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and Sd-i 51 for the registrant and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably

likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board

of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant
role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 23 2010
/5/ JEFFREY KATZENBERG

Jeffrey Katzenberg Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13A-14A OR 15D-14A

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Lewis Coleman certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state

material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such

statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control

over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and 5d- 15f for the registrant
and

have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to

be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant

including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly

during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial

reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this

report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end

of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that

occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably

likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board

of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over

financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record

process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date February 23 2010
is LEwIs COLEMAN

Lewis Coleman President and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to

18 U.S.C Section 1350

As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc

Delaware corporation the Company for the period ending December 31 2008 as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof the Report each of the undersigned

officers of the Company certifies pursuant to 18 U.S .C Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and

the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company

Dated February 23 2010 /s/ JEFFREY KATZENBERG

Jeffrey Katzenberg

Chief Executive Officer

Dated February 23 2010 Is LEWIS COLEMAN

Lewis Coleman

President and Chief Financial Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 or other document authenticating acknowledging or otherwise adopting the signatures that

appear in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the

Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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Corporate Headquarters Corporate Communications

1000 Flower Street

Glendale CA 91201

Legal Counsel

Cravath Swaine Moore LLP

Worldwide Plaza 825 Eighth Avenue

New York NY 10019

Independent Auditors

Ernst Young LLP

725 South Figueroa Street

Los Angeles CA 90017-5418

Transfer Agent and Registrar

BNY Mellon

Shareowner Services

480 Washington Boulevard

Jersey City NY 07310-1900

877 296-7810

www.bnymellon.com/shareowner

investor Relations

Peter Salkowski

ir@dreamworksanimation.com

818 695-3900

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Shannon Olivas

shannon.olivas@dreamworks.com

818 695-3658

Form 10-K

copy of our Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2009 filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission is available on

DreamWorks Animations corporate website at

www.dreamworksanimation.com or by contacting

Investor Relations

Stock Listing

DreamWorks Animation SKG Inc Class Common

Stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market

under the symbol DWA

Annual Stockholders Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held

May 12th 2010 at 800 a.m PDT at the Renaissance

Hotel Los Angeles CA

Corporate Governance Guidelines

DreamWorks Animations Corporate Governance

Guidelines are available on DreamWorks Animations

corporate website at www.dreamworksanimation.com

You may obtain copy of DreamWorks Animations

Corporate Governance Guidelines without charge

through DreamWorks Animations corporate

headquarters

This document includes certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation
Reform Act of 1995 Our plans prospects strategies proposals and our beliefs and expectations

concerning performance of our current and future releases and anticipated talent directors and storyline for our

upcoming films constitute forward-looking statements These statements are based on current expectations

estimates forecasts and projections about the industry in which we operate and managements beliefs and

assumptions These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks uncertainties and

assumptions which are difficult to predict Actual results may vary materially from those expressed or implied by

the statements herein due to changes in economic business competitive technological and/or regulatory

factors and other risks and uncertainties affecting the operation of the business of DreamWorks Animation SKG

Inc These risks and uncertainties include audience acceptance of our films our dependence on the success

of limited number of releases each year the increasing cost of producing and marketing feature films piracy

of motion pictures the effect of rapid technological change or alternative forms of entertainment and our

need to protect our proprietary technology and enhance or develop new technology In addition due to the

uncertainties and risks involved in the development and production of animated feature films the release dates

for the films described in this document may be delayed For further list and description
of such risks and

uncertainties see the reports filed by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission including our annual

report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2009 DreamWorks Animation is under no obligation to

and expressly disclaims any obligation to update or alter its forward-looking statements whether as result of

new information future events changes in assumptions or otherwise
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